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LIVERPOOL VICTORIA GENERAL INSURANCE GROUP LIMITED CONSOLIDATED (COMPANY
REGISTRATION NUMBER: 04332926)

STRATEGIC REPORT

1. Results and dividends :

The loss on ordinary activities for the year after taxatlon is £21.9m (2015: 38 6m profit) as set out on page 13.
The Directors have declared and paid preference share dividjends of £6.8m in the current. year (2015:
- preference share dividends £6.8m, ordinary share dividends £30.0m). .

2. Principal activities : o

Liverpool Victoria General Insurance Group Limited (‘Company’) is the holding company for a group of

companies (‘Group'), the principal purpose of which is to carry-on general insurance business through both the

direct and broker distribution channels. The primary sources of premium income are from the sale of Motor

insurance products, Home insurance products and Insurance for Small and Medium Size Enterprises (‘SME’).
Motor insurance products include Private Car, Specialist Car, Fleet, Motorcycle and Commercial Vehicles. The

Group also underwrites Road Rescue, Pet and Travel Insurance.

' - : )
3. Business review and developments -
/

(a) Strategy : :
in line with the rest of LV=, the Group has lntroduced a new strategy, ‘based on a core purpose of ‘Live
Confident’ and three strategic thrusts:
1. Build a business that is sustainably Lean & strong so that the Group can achieve |ts goals over the
long-term whilst continuing to grow value. .
2. Deliver Green Heart Experiences for customers and colleagues designing and dellverlng solutions that
prevent as well as fix — and inspire total trust.
3. Harness the latest technologies, evolve how the Group operates, and bring in the new talent needed.to
ensure that the Group leads the industry today and into the future. LV= has termed this LV=3.0.

In 2016 a new confident ambition was set to transform from a top-five UK car insurer to a top-five general
insurer. The Group intends to achieve this through customer centricity, maintaining its customer satisfaction and
retention rates and growth through outperformlng in the motor market and driving strong and profitable growth
in the commercial market. .

The Group aims to deliver attractive and consistent returns to the members of Liverpool Victoria Friendly
Society Limited (‘LVFS'). :

(b) Key performance indicators

The Board sets KPIs and targets for its main operating busmesses which it monitors on a regular basis
throughout the year. These KPIs change from time to time as objectlves and priorities change.

The Group also uses a range of non-flnancnal KPls whnch are disclosed and managed at ultlmate parent
company Ievel .

The Group uses many detailed KPIs to monitor performance. The main high level ones are as follows:

2016 ‘ 2015

' v £m £m
Underwriting result . ‘ _ : 70.1 43.7
Investment.refurn = ;! : 426 - 28.6
Operating profit — pre Ogden ‘ ' , 112.7 72.3
Reserve increase due to Ogden rate changes (note 1) ) (138.5) -
. Operating (loss)/profit — post Ogden . ' : (25.8) 723
Centrally managed costs ) v (2.0) (19.4)
Finance costs : ' : . (0.4) (0.3)
Amortisation of acquired intangibles - : . (1.8) (1.8)
(Loss)/profit before tax . o (30.0) 50.8



LIVERPOOL VICTORIA GENERAL INSURANCE GROUP LIMITED CONSOLIDATED (COMPANY
REGISTRATION NUMBER: 04332926)

STRATEGIC REPORT
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3. Business review and developments (continued)

(b) Key'performance indicators (continued)

. _ 2016 2015
Direct operating profit - pre Ogden : < £93.0m £91.1m
Broker operating profit/(loss) — pre Ogden : _ £25.8m (£18.8m)
Operating profit ceded to reinsurers — pre Ogden* (£6.1m) -
. 69.7% pre Ogden An 0
Loss ratio : 81.7% post Ogden 66.3%
. " 24.4% pre Ogden
Expense ratio ' : 24.1% post Ogden 29.8%
, . . 94.1% pre Ogden o
Combined ratio . 105.8% post Ogden _ 96.1%
Investment performance™* 21% 1.3%
Direct premium income ' £912.7m £837.3m
Broker premium income ‘ £668.7m £634.6m
Pre-tax return on capital — pre Ogden 14.2% 9.5%
Direct in-force policies 3.6m_ 3.3m
Broker in-force policies 1.4m 1.4m

*In the latter part of 2015 the Group entered into a Loss Portfolio Transfer agreement resulting in reinsurance of 20% of its booked reserves
as at 31 December 2015. From 1 January 2016 the Group has been part of a 20% Quota Share agreement.
**Quoted gross of expenses

Note 1 — Ogden : '
On 27 February 2017, the Lord Chancellor announced a reduction in the Ogden discount rate from 2.5% to

minus 0.75% from 20 March 2017. Subsequently, a consultation has been launched across the industry on 30
March 2017 to consider options for reform. The Ogden discount rate is used to calculate lump sum settlements
of bodily injury claims, including awards for recurring costs such as loss of earnings and ongoing medical care.
The Group has previously held a provision in claims reserves in line with the previous actual rate of 2.5%. As a
result of the announcement, the Group has increased this provision for the estimated impact of moving to a
minus 0.75% Ogden discount rate for all business earned up to 31 December 2016. The overall impact of this
rate change on 2016 operating profit was £138.5m. Reflecting this charge as a separate .item in the operating
profit statement, and key ratios, recognises the magnitude of the change in policy and the potentlal for future
revisions to the discount rate to cause further volatility in the Group's results.

{c) Results and performance
Operating loss for the Group in 2016, including the impact of the Ogden rate change was £25. 8m (2015: -
£72.3m profit).

Before the impact of the Ogden rate change, the Group operating profit of £112.7m was up 56% compared to
2015 reflecting an increase in investment return and a strong increase in the underwriting result. Underlying
performance showed good progress, with gross written premiums up 7% -compared to 2015. In large part this
was due to the growth in policies, but also because prices have gone up across the whole market in recognition
of inflation in claims costs in recent years. :

While the Group’s underlying claims costs were impacted by the increased costs of putting right damage to
vehicles, mainly third parties, these were largely offset by better outcomes on claims from prior years. As
expected, at £63.7m the pre-Ogden releases from prior year claims reserves were not as large as those in 2015
(£92.8m). Despite this, the Group’'s pre-Ogden -combined ratio of 94.1% is lower than 2015’s 96.1%. The
reduction in the Ogden rate increased the Group’s 2016 claims incurred figure by £138.5m.

in response to the competitive market conditions the Group has maintained strong cost disciplines through -
controlling acquisition costs and operating expenses during the year. The improvement in the pre-Ogden .
expense ratio at 24.4% (2015: 29.8%) has been distorted by the different impacts of the 2015 Loss Portfolio
Transfer agreement and the 2016 Quota Share agreement on the calculatlon Underlying expenses in 2016
have essentially been maintained at the same level as 2015.



LIVERPOOL VICTORIA GENERAL INSURANCE GROUP LIMITED CONSOLIDATED (COMPANY
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STRATEGIC REPORT

3. Business review and developments (continued)
(c) Results and performance (continued)

Investment returns increased to £42.6m (2015: £28.6m). The continued low underlying interest rate market
resulted in low investment income, but this was offset by improved capital returns in equities, reﬂectlng the
overall increase in UK and overseas markets, and debt securities, as gilt yields decreased

Drrect

The Group’s direct business grew in LV= branded car and home portfolios due to strong sales and market
leading renewal retention. This growth was driven by the focus on providing great value products, underpinned
by great customer service. Overall policies increased by 9% to 3.6 million, with car-and breakdown policies
. passing their 2 million and 1 million milestones respectively. Together with strong average price growth, overall
premiums grew by 9% from £837.3m in 2015 to a new record high of £912.7m. The current year loss ratio,
before the impact of the Ogden rate change improved from 74.2% to 71.8%.

To support sustainable profitable growth, and respond to evolving customer needs and market developments,
the Group .is investing heavily in its Pioneer Programme. This will replace the Group’s legacy policy systems
and transform the car and home distribution capability. The Group will be able to provide a better customer
experience which reflects how people want to get in touch with LV=, and improved proposition development and
pricing. Thanks to great teamwork, management focus and commitment, the programme remains on-track and
within budget to roll-out the new propositions and capability in 2017.

Broker .

2016 saw a strong turnaround in the profits of the broker division pre-Ogden from a loss of £18.8m last year to a
profit of £25.8m this year. This was a achieved through disciplined underwriting, and a forensic review of all
business lines. Broker division policies remained at 1.4 million and premiums grew by 5% from £634.6m in 2015
to £668.7m. The combined ratio, before the impact of the Ogden rate change, improved to 99.3% compared to
105.5% in 2015. Commercial has focused on regional brokers and achieved 9% growth. Personal lines has
concentrated on areas of the market that complement the direct division. ~

Unfortunately, the Group has not been able to make sustainable profits in the highly competitive broker home
market, so this product has been withdrawn from April 2017. The Group remains fully committed to its broker
personal motor and commercial business, and to home insurance products sold directly to customers.

The Group has continued to deliver a strong service proposition to its brokers and has achieved Chartered
- Insurer status for its underwriting teams during the year which recognises the professional skills and knowledge
of its people.

Looking ahead
The Group is strongly posntloned in all its markets with excellent customer service, exciting digital offerings’ in

development and a very strong brand franchise. There has been a strong improvement in underwriting profits in
2016 which is expected to continue in 2017, subject to the usual caveats about bad weather and large losses,
and the negative impact of the Ogden discount rate change on the Group’s unearned premiums. The Group has
re-priced its motor business to take account of the higher expected claims costs going forwards. Investment in
technology to improve the customer experience and eliminate waste should generate a productivity dividend
and lead to future improvements in the expense ratio.

The quality and strength of the franchise means the Group is looking forward to the next couple of years with a
clear plan and confidence that it can grow and succeed in its chosen markets.
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_ STRATEGIC REPORT

3. Business review and developments (continued)
(d) Principal risks and uncertainties

Pricing: Private motor market rates increased rapidly in the latter half of 2015, levelling off .in 2016. The motor
market in general supported price increases in 2016 in order to achieve acceptable margins. While pricing in the
market finally began to harden the rate increases achieved were eroded by overall market claims inflation. The
home and SME markets continue to be very competitive and there is IlttIe evidence to suggest that this will
change during 2017.

Economic environment: The financial market environment during the course of 2016 has been volatile and’
returns subdued or negative. There has been increased uncertainty following the EU referendum result. This
situation looks set to remain going into 2017 with significant uncertainties around interest rates, credit spreads,

yield levels, and equity markets. As a result, the overall investment return is predicted to remain relatively low
(by historical standards) and unpredictable for the next few years.

Financial risk: The Group pays particular attention to credit risk and the increasing trend of claims leakage
through fraud. Capital management and cash flow remain material considerations at all times.

Business change: The Group is still going through a number of material transformation processes (including a
full review of some of its core systems) as it continues to prepare for the future. Such change carries with it an
element of operational risk; however, the directors mitigate this risk through a disciplined project management
approach.

Distribution/Market developments: The influence of the mobile internet and of price comparison websites
(commonly referred to as “aggregators”) continue to transform the UK business environment, although it could
be argued that the use of aggregators is now a market norm. Social media continues to be a material feature
influencing the way that the Group conducts its business, and is therefore monitored closely. Insurance specific
developments in technology (such as crash avoidance systems, driverless cars etc.) are other potential factors
of material market transformation in the future. The Group is ensuring that it is prepared to respond quickly to
changing circumstances.

. Exceptlonal weather events: Exceptional weather events will always present a risk to an insurance company
which underwrites property. The Group mitigates this risk as far as is sensible through the purchase of
reinsurance protection.

Regulatory A numbeér of legal and regulatory developments affected the UK insurance market during 2016 and
will continue into 2017. These include:

"~ 1. Solvency H: The directors monitor all developments and have taken appropriate action to ensure that the
Group is well prepared for the Solvency Il capital regime which took effect from 1. January 2016. This regime
has required significant changes to the solvency and capital management processes of both insurance
companies and regulators. The Group used the Standard Formula to calculate its capital requirements
throughout 2016, and expects to move to an Internal Model following PRA review and approval.

2. FCA market intervention: The FCA has made its intention public to intervene more actively in the workings of
the market where it feels that the right outcomes are not being achieved for the consumer (e.g. consultation
over ancillary fees and price comparison websites). This may result in requirements to change practice in
product design, distribution and pricing. While the Group considers that customer value is at the heart of the
way it does business, as evidenced by market leading customer satisfaction and recommendation scores, there
is a risk that such interventions designed to address general market concerns cause incidental cost and
disruption to the Group.




LIVERPOOL VICTORIA GENERAL INSURANCE GROUP LIMITED CONSOLIDATED (COMPANY
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'STRATEGIC REPORT

" 3. Business review and developments (contmued)
(d) Prmmpal risks and uncertainties (continued)

-3. Ogden discount rate: The Ogden discount rate changed in February 2017.— the rate is used by insurance
companies to calculate a: discounted lump-sum value of the future cost of care, loss of earnings and pensions
for large personal injury claims. The rate decreased from 2.5% to minus 0.75% which had an adverse impact of

~ £138.5m on the operating profit of the Group. This impact was recognlsed in the 2016 results. However, there is

a risk that this change could-also impact underwriting profits going forwards ‘due to the increased uncertamty
arising in insurance markets foIIowmg this decision. .

" “Further detail as to how the Group manages its prmcnpal types of risk is dlsclosed in note 4 of the fmancral
statements. ,

e) Post year end events -

The change in the Ogden discount rate had a £138. 5m adverse impact on. the Group's operating profit and a.
£100m adverse impact on the. Group’s Solvency Il capital surplus. To support the capital position of Liverpool

Victoria Insurance Company Limited (‘LVIC’), a regulated: subsidiary of the Group, the Company purchased 40

million ordinary shares of £1 each in LVIC at par on 28 February 2017. This capital injection was not recognised

in-the 2016 results. In order to fund this capital injection the Company issued 40 mrllron ordunary shares of £1

each at par to LV Capital PLC, its parent company, on 28 February 2017.

~ There -have been no other events of signifi cance affectlng the Group since the Statement of Fmanmal Position
date. A

Approved by the Board of Directors and signed on behalf of the Board

R Rowney
Director

08 June 2017 .



. 'LIVERPOOL VICTORIA GENERAL INSURANCE GROUP LIMITED CONSOLIDATED (COMPANY
v .REGISTRATION NUMBER: 04332926)

DIRECTORS' REPORT

As permitted by section 414C(11) of the Companies Act 2006, certain information is not included'in the
Directors’ Report because it has instead been shown in the Strategic Report. This information is:

- o 'Results and dividends; ~
Principal activities of the Company;
Business review. and future prospects; '
Principal risks and uncertainties; and . o .
Post year-end events.

1. Directors and thelr interests
The present members of the board and the members who were in offlce during the year and up to the date of
5|gn|ng the financial statements, are listed on page 3. ’ .

2. Parent company ' ' .
The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of LV Capital PLC. The ultimate parent company is Liverpool
Victoria Friendly Society ( LVFS’), a friendly society incorporated under the Friendly Socretles Act 1992

* 3. Employees
The Group did not d|rectly empon any staff during 2016. Instead it utilised the staff and premises of LVFS in
carrying out its activities and incurred the cost of staff through management ch_arges

+ 4. Directors” indemnity statement ) :

The directors have the benefit of an indemnity whlch constitutes a qualifying third party indemnity provision" as
defined by Section 234 of the Companies Act 2006. The indemnity was in force throughout the last financial -
year and is currently in force. LVFS .also purchased and maintained throughout the year on behalf of its A
subsidiaries Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance in respect of the Group and its directors. It'is avallable
for inspection at the registered office of the Group, details of wh|ch are provided on page 3.

5. Directors’ responS|b|I|t|es statement

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Strateglc Report, Directors’ Report and the financial statements
in accordance with applicable law and regulations.

~ Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the
directors have prepared the financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union (EU). Under company law the directors must not approve the
financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Group and the Company and of the profit or loss of the Group and the Company for that year. In preparung '
these financial statements, the dlrectors are required to: .

select suitable accountlng policies and then apply them con5|stently,
make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent
state whether applicable IFRSs, as adopted by the European Union, have been followed, subject to any
material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

e prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is mappropnate to presume that the
Group and the Company will continue in business. - A A

The directors are respohsible for.keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the Group -and Company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position
of the Group and the Company and enable them to ensure that-the financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the Group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation.

They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and the Company and hence for takmg
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The directors are responsible for the mair\tenahce and 'integrity of information relating to the Group and
Company which is included on LVFS’s website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation
“and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.



LIVERPOOL VICTORIA GENERAL INSURANCE GROUP LIMITED CONSOLIDATED (COMPANY
REGISTRATION NUMBER: 04332926)

' " DIRECTORS' REPORT

6. Independent Auditors and disclosure of information to auditors
Each director at the date of this report confirms that:

e so far as the directors are aware, there is no information relevant to the audit (“Audit Informatlon”) of
which the Company’s auditors are unaware; and .

'« the directors have taken all steps that they ought to have taken as a director in order to make himself
or herself aware of any Audit Informatlon and to establish that the Company s auditors are aware of
that information. ' - :

7. Amendment to original filed accounts

These accounts replace the original accounts filed in April 2017 and are now the statutory accounts for the
period ending 31 December 2016. The accounts have been amended in order to present the results of the
Group on a consolidated basis as well as presentmg information about the Company as an individual
.undertakmg

Approved by tﬁé Board of Directors and signed by order of the Board
{I(‘/M Sha
RS Small

Company Secretary
08 June 201 7
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LIVERPOOL VICTORIA GENERAL INSURANCE GROUP LIMITED C'ONSOLIDATED (COMPANY
REGISTRATION NUMBER: 04332926)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF LIVERPOOL VICTORIA GENERAL
INSURANCE GROUP LIMITED

Report on the financial statements

Our opinion
In our opinion, Liverpool Vlctona General Insurance Group lelted s group fmancnal statements and company
financial statements (the “financial statements")

e give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and of the company’s affairs as at 31 December .
2016 and of the group's loss, the company’s profit and the group’s and the company’s cash flows
for the year then ended;

.o have been properly prepared in accordance with Internatlonal Fmancnal Reportlng Standards
("IFRSs”) as adopted by the European Union; and

- o have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companles Act 2006.

What we have audited y
The financial statements included within the Report and Financial Statements (the "Annual Report ), comprise:

o the consolldated and company statements of financial position as at 31 December 2016;

e = the consolidated and company statements of comprehensive income for the year then ended;
o the consolidated and company statements of changes in equity for the year then ended;

¢ the consolidated and company statements of cash flows for the year then ended; and

e the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accountmg policies
and other explanatory information. :

The financial reportlng framework that has been applied in the preparatlon of the financial statements is IFRSs
as adopted by the European Union, and applicable law.

In applylng the financial reporting framework, the directors have made a number of subjectlve judgements, for
example in respect of significant accounting estimates. In making such estimates, they have made assumptions
and considered future events. .

Opinion on other matter pres’cribed'by the Companies Act 2006 , (
In.our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

+ the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which
the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and ‘

s the Strategic Report and the Dlrectors Report have been prepared in accordance with appllcable legal
requirements.

In addition, in light of the knowledge and understanding of the group, the company and their environment
obtained in the course of the audit, we are required to report if we have identified any material misstatements in
the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report. We have nothing to report in this respect..

Other matters on which we are requ'irefd to report by exception

Adequacy of accounting records and information and explanations received
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

e we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

e adequate accounting records have not been kept by the company, or returns’ adequate for our audlt‘
have not been received from branches not visited by us; or

e the company financial statements are not.in agreement with the accounting records and returns. -

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

1
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF LIVERPOOL VICTORIA GENERAL
INSURANCE GROUP LIMITED

Directors’ remuneration :

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion, certain disclosures of
directors’ remuneration specified by law are riot made. We have no exceptions to report arising from this .
responsibility.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

Our responsibilities and those of the directors '

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement set out on page 9, the directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair
view. ' -

Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable
law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) (“ISAs (UK & Ireland)”). Those standards require
us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors.

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company’'s members as a body in
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving
these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this
report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

What an audit of financial statements involves

We conducted our audit in accordance with.ISAs (UK & Ireland). An audit involves obtaining evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial
. statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment
of:

¢ whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the group’s and the company’s circumstances
and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed;

¢ the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the directors; end
e the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We primarily focus our work in these areas by assessing the directors’ judgements agamst available evidence,
forming our own judgements, and evaluating the disclosures in the financial statements. .

We test and examine information, using sampling and other auditing techniques, to the extent we consider
necessary to provide a reasonable basis for us to draw conclusions. We obtain audit evidence through testlng
the effectiveness of controls, substantive procedures or a combination of both.

In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial |nformat|on in the Annual Report to identify materlal
inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to identify any information that is apparently materially
incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing the
audit. If we become aware of any apparent material. misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the
implications for our report. With respect to the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report, we consider whether
those reports include the disclosures required by applicable legal requirements.

Andrew G Hill (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors

London
08 June 2017

12 he



" LIVERPOOL VICTORIA GENERAL INSURANCE GROUP LIMITED CONSOLIDATED

CONSOLiDATED AND COMPANY STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

- Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
, Note £000 £000 £000 £000
Gross earned premiums 5 1,530,383 1,419,834 - -
Premiums ceded to reinsurers 5 (340,926) (284,409) - -
Net earned premiums "5 1,189,457 1,135,425 - -
Investment income 6 60,585 74,878 3,400 37,980
Net losses on investments 7 (13,685) (42,947). - -
Other income 8 37,605 35,456 - . -
Total income 1,273,962 1,202,812 3,400 37,980
Insurance claims and loss adjustment
expenses : 9 (1,274,691) (1,017,802) - -
“Insurance claims and loss adjustment ) )
expenses recoverable from reinsurers -9 302,923 265,330 - -
Net insurance claims 9 (971,768) (752,472) - -
Gross operating and administrative ’ - )
expenses 10 (403,848) (399,229) - (19,442)
Expenses recoverable from reinsurers 10 72,033 - - ' -
Net operating and administrative .
" expenses : 10 (331,815)  (399,229) - (19,442)
" Finance costs (353) (319) - -
Total claims and expenses (1,303,936) (1,152,020) - (19,442)
‘('I'_oss)/profit before tax (29,974) 50,792 3,400 18,538
Income tax credit/(expense) - 4 13 8,100 (12,178) - -
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to : ,
owners of the parent ' (21,874) 38,614 3,400 18,538
Total comprehensive income for the year (21,874) 38,614 3,400 18,538

All balances relate to continuing business.

The notes on pages 17 to 65 are an integral part of the financial statements. , ‘

N
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LIVERPCOL VICTORIA GENERAL INSURANCE GROUP LIMlTED CONSOLIDATED

CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

. Attributable to equity holder of the Group

Share Preference Retained Capital Total
capital shares earnings reserve equity
Note £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Balance at 1" January 2016 401,312 170,000 143,487 - 714,799
Reclassification of share capital 32 3,500 B - - 3,500
Dividends paid (preference shares) 35 - - (6,800) . (6,800)
Total comprehensive income for the year 34 - . = (21,874 - (21,874)
Balance at 31 December 2016 404,812 170,000 114,813 - 689,625
Attributable to equity holder of the Group
Share Preference Retained Capital Total
capital shares earnings reserve " equity
: . Note £000 £000 -~ £000 £000 . £000
Balance at 1 January 2015 400,312 170,000 116,473 25,200 711,985
Reclassification of share capital 32 1,000 .- - - 1,000
Dividends paid (preference shares) 35 - - - (6,800) (6,800)
Dividends paid (ordinafy. shares) 35 - : - (11,600) (18,400) (30,000)
Total comprehensive income for the year . 34 - ‘ - 38,614 - 38,614
Balance at 31 December 2015 401,312 170,000 143,487 - 714,799
-Attributable to equity holder of the Company
Share Preference Retained Capital Total
capital shares earnings reserve equity
Note £000 £000 £000 - £000 £000
Balance at 1 January 2016 ‘ 401,312 170,000 " 68,057 -+ 639,369
Reclassification of share capital 32 3,500 - - .- 3,500
“Dividends paid (preference shares) 35 - - (6,800) (6,800)
Total comprehensive income for the year 34 - - 3,400 - 3,400
Balance at 31 December 2016 . 404,812 170,000 64,657 < 639,469
Attributable to equity holder of the Company
Share Preference Retained Capital . Total
~ -capital shares earnings reserve equity
Note £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Balance at 1 January 2015 400,312 170,000 61,119 25,200 - 656,631
Reclassification of share capital 32 1,000 ' - - - . 1,000
Dividends paid (preference shares) 35 - - - , - (6,800) (6,800)
Dividends paid (ordinary shares) 35 - - (11,600) (18,400) (30,000)
Total comprehensive income for the year ‘34 - - 18,538 - -18,538
Balance at 31 December 2015 401,312 170,000 68,057 - 639,369

The notes on pagés 17 to 65 are an integral part of the financial statements.
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LIVERPOOL VICTORIA GENERAL INSURANCE GROUP LIMITED CONSOLIDATED '

CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
~ AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2016

Group Company

2016 2015 2016 - = 2015
Note - £000 £000 . £000 . £000
‘Assets - : ' - .
Intangible assets ' 14 237,443 209,696 - -
- Property-and equipment 15 8,306 6,475 .
Investments in group undertakings - 16 : - - 678,913 678,913
"Current tax asset 27 12,811 - - -
Deferred tax asset - 28 : 3,506 - ' - -
Prepayments .and accrued income 17 - 35,501 30,282 - ) - _ -
Deferred acquisition costs ' 18 . 101,732 98,906 - -
-Financial assets at fair value'through . - o : 4
income , 19 1,570,108 1,635,214 - 3,400
Derivative financial instruments . 20 - 1,859 - -
Loans and other receivables : 21 230,950 8,217 4 - -
Reinsurance assets = - C 22,25 . 489,251 398,430 : - -
Insurance receivables _ - 23 ’ 275,763 237,525 - -
Cash and cash equivalents 24 310,447 685,468 . 9 9
Total assets 3,275,818 3,212,072 678,922 682,322
* Liabilities 4 . - .
Insurance contract liabilities 25 2,353,301 2,093,212 ’ - -
Provisions - 26 C - 180" - -
Current tax liability ‘ 27 - 802 - - .
Deferred. tax liability o 28 S 223 - -
Derivative financial instruments 20 22,644 , 23 - -
Other financial liabilities 29 ' 10,243 " 10,394 - : -
Insurance payables. 30 . 29,656 256,216 - -
Trade and other payables . ¢ 31 170,349 136,213 39,453 . 42,953
Total liabilities ' 2,586,193 . 2,497,273 39,453 42,953
Equity
Share capital - : - 32 404,812 401,312 " 404,812 401,312
Preference shares .33 - 170,000 170,000 170,000 170,000
Retained earnings - 34 114,813 143,487 64,657 68,057
Total equity 689,625 714,799 639,469 639,369
Total liabilities and equity ' 3,275,818 3,212,072 678,922 682,322

N

The notes on pages 17 to 65 are an integral part of the financial stateménts.
These financial statements on péges 13 to 65 were approved by the Board of Directors on 08 June 2017.

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors

R. Rowney . .
Director ) : . .
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LIVERPOOL VICTORIA GENERAL INSURANCE GROUP LIMITED CONSOLIDATED

CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

- Company

Group
2016 2015 2016 2015
Note £000 "~ £000 £000 - £000
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 24 675;868 310,130 9 9
. Cash flows arising from:
Operating activities
Cash (used m)/generated from operatlng '
activities 36 (392,912) 77,558 - - 11
Net (mcrease)/decrease in mvestments held '
at fair value through income (24,099) 245,519 3,400 (1,180)
Dividend income received ‘ o 11,802 10,092 3,400 37,980
Interest income received : - 77,933 98,413 - ' -
Finance costs ' : A - (353) (319) - -
Group relief paid . : ‘ 27 "~ (5,416) (1,990) - (11)
Income tax paid 27 (3,826) (17,782) - -
Net cash flows (used in)/generated from - . o . ‘
operating actlwtles (336,871) - 411,491 6,800 36,800
Investing activities - : : R
Purchase of property and equupment (3,179) (301) - -
Purchase of capitalised intangible assets "~ (32,260) (8,652) - -
Net cash flows used in investing ' :
activities (35,439) (8,953) - -
_ Financing activities ' _ : . :
Dividends paid : 35 (6,800) (36,800) (6,800) (36,800)
Net cash flows used in fmancmg ' : .
activities (6,800) (36,800) (6,800) (36,800)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash '
gquivalents (379,110) 365,738 - -
Cash and cash equwalents at
9 9

31 December 24 296,758 675,8_68

The notes on pages 17 to 65 are an integral part of the financial statements. .
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LIVERPOOL VICTORIA GENERAL INSURANCE GROUP LIMITED CONSOLIDATED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

1. General information oo -
The Company is a company limited by shares domiciled and mcorporated in the United Kingdom. The -
companies within the Group underwrite general insurance risks, including motor and household risks. All
- contracts of insurance are written in the United Kingdom, Republic of Ireland or the Channel Islands.

2. Accounting policies

Basis of presentation

The Group's financial statements consolldate the results of the Company:. and its subsidiary companies. The
Group's and the Company s financial statements conform to International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
and interpretations issued by the IFRS Interpretations Committee as published by the International Accounting
Standards Board and adopted by the European Union (EU). In addition the financial statements comply with
those parts of the Companies Act 2006 appllcable to companies reportmg under IFRS. .

In accordance with IFRS 4 on Insurance Contracts, the Group has applied existing aecounting ptactices for
insurance contracts modified as appropriate to comply with-the IFRS framework and applicable standards.
Further details are given in the Claims and-insurance contract liabilities accounting policy.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of financial assets and liabilities at fair value through income. Items included in the financial
statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). Unless otherwise noted, the consolidated
financial statements are presented in thousands of pounds sterling, which is the Group’s presentation currency.

The preparation of the financial statements in con'fo/rmity with IFRS requires the use of estimates. It also
requires management to exercise judgement in the process of applying the accounting policies. The key areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the financial statements are disclosed in note 3. A

The principal accounting policies adopted are listed on pages 18 to 23. These policies have been consistently
" applied to all years presented unless otherwise stated.-

After making enquiries, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate resources to
continue in operatlonal existence for the foreseeable future. The Group therefore continues to adopt the going
concern basis in preparing its financial statements.
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LIVERPOOL VICTORIA GENERAL INSURANCE GROUP LIMITED CONSOLIDATED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

2. Accounting policies (continued)

Basis of consolidation
Sub5|d|ar|es are all entities over which the Group (directly or mdnrectly) has control. The Group controls an -
entity when the Group has all of the following:

e power over the relevant activities of the entity, for example through voting or other rights;

e  exposure to, or rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity; and

« the ability to affect those returns through the power over the entity.

The assessment of control is based on the consideration of all the facts and circumstances. The Group
reassesses whether it controls an entity if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group using uniform accounting policies consistently applied across the Group. They are
- excluded from consolidation from the date on which control ceases.

‘The Group uses the purchase method of accounting to acco{unt for the acquisition of subsidiaries. Accordingly,
the cost of an acquisition is measured as the fair value of the cash or other assets given, equity instruments
issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date control passes. Identifiable assets acquired, liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed .in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of any minority interest. The excess of the cost of acquisition over. the
fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. Iif the cost of
acquisition is less than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised
directly in the Statement of Comprehensive Income for the period.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on intra-group transactions are eliminated on
consolidation. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred.

Earned premiums

General insurance premiums written reflect business coming into force during the year.

Written premiums include new business premiums plus an estimate is included for prem|ums due from
intermediaries. Net earned premiums are arrived at following deductions for premiums payable to reinsurers
and deferral of unearned premium. Unearned premium is that proportion of a premium written in a year that
relates to periods of risk after the Statement of Financial Position date. Unearned premiums are calculated on a
time apportionment basis. The proportion attributable to subsequent periods is deferred as a provision for
unearned premiums.

Investment income :

Investment income includes dividends, interest from investments at fair value and interest on loans and
receivables. Dividends are included on an ex-dividend basis. Interest receivable from investments at fair value
is accounted for on an accruals basis. Investment expenses are accounted for as incurred.

Realised gains or losses
Realised gains and losses on mvestments are calculated as the difference between net sales proceeds and
purchase price. .

Unreallsed gains and losses

Unrealised gains and losses on investments represent the difference between the valuation of fair value asséts
at the Statement of Financial Position date and their valuation at the last Statement of Financial Position date
or, where purchased during the year, the purchase price. A reversal is made of previously recognised gains or
Iosses in respect of disposals made during the year.

Forelgn currencies

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated to sterlmg at rates of exchange
ruling at the Statement of Financial Position date. Purchases and sales of investments denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the rates prevailing at the dates of the respective transactions. Exchange gains and
losses are dealt with in that part of the Statement of Comprehensive Income in which the underlying transaction
is reported.
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- LIVERPOOL VICTORIA GENERAL INSURANCE GROUP LIMITED CONSOLIDATED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

2. Accounting policies (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through income :

- All investments of the Group classified as fair value are designated as fair value through income at mceptron
Financial assets designated at fair value through income at inception are part of a group of financial assets that
are managed and-their performance evaluated and reported to the board on a fair value basis in accordance
with the Group's documented investment strategy.

Such assets are valued at market prices, or prices consistent with market ratings should no price be available.
Day one gains or losses are recognised only where valuations use data from observable markets. Any
unrealised or realised gains or losses are taken to the Statement of Comprehensive Income, as fair value gains
or losses, or realised gains or losses respectively, as they occur.

Collective investment schemes
- Collective investment schemes are included within financial assets at fair value though income and therr
accounting treatment is consistent with that of financial assets at fair value through income. .

Derivative financial instruments _ ,

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and
are subsequently re-measured at their fair value. There are no designated hedging relationships that qualify for
hedge accounting; all are classified as held for trading. Derivatives are settled on a gross basis.

. Changes in the fair value of derivativé instruments are recognised immediately in- gains or losses on’
investments in the Statement of Comprehensive Income for the period. Realised gains or losses are srmrlarly
taken to the Statement of Comprehensive Income on occurrence.
Loans and other receivables o '

Loans and other receivables are recognised when due and comprise reverse repurchase agreements, cash
collateral pledged and other receivables. Loans and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value and
then subsequently held.at amortised cost. Amounts included for reverse repurchase agreements represent the
consideration paid to the borrower and are accounted for as a loan at amortrsed cost.

The Company assesses at each Statement of Financial Position date whether there is any indication that a loan
or receivable, or a group of loans or receivables, is impaired. Where there is objective evidence that the
" carrying value is impaired then the impairment loss will be recognised in the Statement of Comprehensrve
Income.

‘Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise ‘cash at bank and in ‘hand, and short-term deposrts wrth an original

.maturity of three months or less.

-For the purpese of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash. and cash equivalents are as defined abotre but are
shown net of outstanding bank overdrafts.

Subordinated liabilities

Subordinated liabilities are initially measured at the farr value of the proceeds less attributable transaction costs
Subsequent to initial recognition they are measured at amortised cost. The transaction costs are amortised over
the period to the expected redemption date on an effective interest rate basis. The amortisation charge is
included in the Statement of Comprehensive Income within finance costs. An equivalent amount is added to the
carrying value of the liability such that at the redemptron date the value of the Irabrllty equals the redemption

value. |
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LIVERPOOL VICTORIA GENERAL INSURANCE GROUP LIMITED.CONSOLIDATED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

~ 2. Accounting policies (continued)

Collateral :
Collateral is received or pledged against derivative contracts in the form of cash collateral and non-cash
collateral.

a) Cash collateral

Cash collateral received, which is not legally segregated from the Group, is recognised as an asset with a
corresponding liability for its repayment in the Statement of Financial Position. ‘

Cash collateral pledged, which is legally segregated from the Group, is derecognised from Cash and cash
equivalents and a corresponding ‘asset for its return is recognised in the Statement of Financial Position.

b) Non-cash collateral

Non-cash collateral received against derivative contracts where the counterparty is not in default, that is neither
sold nor repledged, is not recognised in the Statement of Financial Position. Non-cash collateral pledged
against derivative contracts where the Group is not in default is not derecognised from the Statement of
Financial Posntlon and remains within the appropriate asset classification.

Derecogmtlon
A financial asset is derecognised when:
- the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or
- the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and has:
- transferred the risks and rewards of the asset; or
- - transferred control of the asset

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Claims and insurance contract liabilities

Claims incurred comprise. claims and related internal and external claims handling costs paid in the year and
changes in the provisions for outstanding claims, including provisions for claims incurred but not reported and
related claims handling costs, together with any other adjustments to claims from previous years. Where
applicable, deductions are made for recoveries from other parties. A separate asset .is recogmsed for
reinsurance recoveries which are accounted for in the same period as the: related claim.

Provision is made for the estimated cost of claims incurred but not settled, including the cost of claims incurred
-but not reported. The estimated cost of claims includes expenses to be incurred in-settling claims and a
deduction for the expected value of recoveriés. However, given the inevitable uncertainty in establishing claims
provisions, it is likely that the final outcome will prove to be different from the original liability:
established. Provisions are adjusted at the Statement of Financial Position date to represent-a best estimate of
the expected outcome.

Standard actuarial claims projection techniques are used to estimate outstanding claims. Such methods
extrapolate the development of paid and incurred claims, recoveries from third parties, average cost per claim -
and ultimate claim numbers for each accident year, based upon the observed development of earlier years and
expected loss ratios. The main assumption underlying these techniques is that past claims development
experience can be used to project ultimate claims costs. In the case of Periodic Payment Orders (PPOs), the
annuity type structure of the claim payments mean that these have to be projected over a longer-term period
and reserved for on a discounted basis accordingly. Allowance. for one off occurrences or changes in
legislation, policy conditions or portfolio mix, is also made in arriving at the estimated ultimate cost of claims, in
order that it represents the most likely outcome, taking account of all the uncertainties involved. To the extent
that the ultimate cost is different from the estimate, where experience is better or worse than that assumed, the
surplus or deficit will be credited or charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income in future years.

Provisions are calculated allowing for reinsurance recoveries and a separate asset is recorded for the
reinsurers' share.of the provision.
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LIVERPOdL VICTORIA GENERAL INSURANCE GROUP LIMITED CONSOLIDATED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

2. Accounting policies (continued)

Deferred acquisition costs : _
The proportion of the costs of acquiring new general insurance business which relate to unearned premiums

are deferred and recognised as an asset to the extent that they are recoverable out of margins in future
- matching revenues. . . ‘

Acquisition costs comprise all allowable costs incurred in writihg new contracts. Deferred acquisition costs
(DAC) are amortised over a period which is consistent with the assessment of the expected pattern of receipt of
future revenue margins for each product type.

All deferred acquisition costs are tested for recoverability at each reporting date. The carrying values are
adjusted to recoverable amounts and any resulting impairment losses are charged to the Statement of

Comprehensive Income.

Deferred acquisition costs are all due within one year for both 2015 and 2016. Acquisition costs are costs of
acquiring new business and include commissions, underwriting expenses and policy issue expenses. -

Llablllty adequacy test

At each ‘Statement of Financial Position date liability adequacy tests are performed to ensure the ‘adequacy of
insurance contract liabilities, net of related deferred acquisition costs. In performing these tests current best
estimates of future contractual cash flows and claims handling and administration expenses as well as
investment income from the assets backing such liabilities are used. Any deficiency is immediately charged to
the Statement of Comprehensive Income and an unexpired risk reserve established. .

Remsurance assets :

Contracts entered into by the Group with reinsurers under whlch the Group is compensated for Iosses on the
.insurance contracts issued by the Group are classified as reinsurance contracts. A contract is only accounted
for as a reinsurance contract where there is significant insurance risk transfer between the insured and the
insurer. Reinsurance assets include balances due from reinsurance companies for ceded insurance liabilities.
Amounts are estimated inh a consistent manner with the outstanding claims provisions ‘or settled claims
associated with the reinsured policies and in accordance with the relevant reinsurance contract. : '

An impairment review is performed at the Statement of Financial Position date. Impairment occurs when there
is evidence that the Group will not recover outstanding amounts under the contract, such losses being recorded
immediately in the Statement of Comprehensive Income

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the net identifiable assets of
the acquired book of business at the acquisition date and is included in intangible assets. Goodwill is reviewed
for impairment at the end of the first full year of acquisition. Thereafter, it is tested at each Statement of
Financial Position date for impairment against the recoverable amount (being the higher of value in use or fair
value less cost) of the relevant cash generatlng unit and carned in the Statement of Financial Position at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. :

Other intangibles
Where an acquisition takes place that gives access to existing customers or distribution channels, then the
present value of these is recognised as an intangible asset. The carrying value of the asset is amortised over its
expected economic life, and is assessed as and when impairment may be indicated.

The expected economic life of other intangibles is determined by reference to acquired business considering

factors such as the remaining terms of agreements, the normal lives of related products and the competitive
posmon and lies within the range of 10 to 20 years.
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LIVERPOOL VICTORIA GENERAL INSURANCE GROUP LIMITED CONSOLIDATED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

2. Accounting policies (continued)

IT Software .

IAS 38 Intangible Assets requires the capitalisation of certain expenditure relating to software costs Software
costs are capitalised if it is probable that the asset created will generate future economic benefits. Costs -
- incurred to establish technological feasibility or to maintain existing levels.of performance are recognised as an
expense.

Software costs capitalised as intangible assets include computer application software licences and internally
developed software. Internally developed software is capitalised as an intangible asset and amortised over its
estimated useful life when it is either identified as separable (i.e. capable of being separated from the entity and
sold, transferred, rented, or exchanged) or it arises from contractual or other legal rights, regardiess of whether
those rights are transferable or separable. Software intangibles are amortised using the straight line method
over their useful lives (three to six years). The amortisation periods used are reviewed annually.

Software values are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. Where the carrying amount is not recoverable the asset is written
down immediately to the estimated recoverable amount, based on value in use calculations. .

Property and equipment '

Operational property and equipment is held at accumulated cost Iess depreciation. ‘Cost includes the original
purchase price of the asset and the costs attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for its
- intended use. Both property and equipment are depreciated to their estimated residual values on a straught line
basis over their estimated useful lives. The periods used are as follows:

Freehold buildings and finance lease property* 10 to 50 years

Leasehold property enhancements* 10 years or lease term if shorter
Fixtures and fittings 3 to 10 years

IT equipment . . 3 to 6 years

Assets are written down to their recoverable amount where this is less than the carrying value.

The assets’ resndual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropnate at each Statement of
Financial Position date.

*These are properties used by the Group for operational purposes and are not investment properties.

Investments in Group undertakings .
The subsidiaries are held in the Company's Statement of Financial Position at cost less any provision for
impairment. An assessment of the realisable value is made at the year end and, if the Directors assess.that
there has been a permanent fall in that value below the carrying value, a provision is made to bring the carrying
value down to the assessed realisable value. ’

Impairment of Non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example goodwill, are not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation or depreciation are reviewed for impairment’
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an-asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For
the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows {cash-generating umts)

Non-fmanmal assets, other than goodwill, that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.
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LIVERPOOL VICTORIA GENERAL INSURANCE GROUP LIMITED CONSOLIDATED .

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

2. Aceount'ing policies (continued)

Insurance receivables and payables

Insurance receivables and payables are recognised when due and include amounts due from-or to
" policyholders, agents, brokers and reinsurers. Amounts due from policyholders and brokers include outstanding
premiums where the policyholders have elected to pay in instalments. Reinsurance liabilities are prlmarlly
premiums payable for reinsurance contracts and are recogmsed as an expense when due.

Insurance receivables and payables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently held at amortised
cost. Where there is objective evidence that the carrying value of insurance receivables is impaired then the
|mpa|rment loss will be recognlsed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are recognised as they faII due. They are- initially recognlsed at falr value and
subsequently held at amortised cost.

Trade and other payables include accruals for levies which are recognised when the obligating event of sales of
insurance premiums occurs. Accrual is made in accordance with the requirements of the relevant levy
legislation.

Operating lease payments ‘

The costs in respect of operating leases_are charged on a straight line basis over the lease.term. The value of
any lease incentive received to take on an operating lease (for example, rent free perlods) is recognised as
deferred i income and is released over the life of the lease. .

Income taxes
The income tax expense reﬂects the movement in current and deferred income tax in respect of i lncome gains,

losses and expenses.

Income tax expense :
Income tax expense recorded in the Statement of Comprehensive Income represents the current year
corporation tax charge Corporation tax is charged on trading profits arising in the year. .

- Current income tax
Current income tax liabilities and assets are measured at the amount expected to be paid to or recovered from
the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted by the Statement of Financial Position date.

- Deferred tax ‘ Co
Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred income tax is -
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Statement of
Financial Position date and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled. Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or dlfferent taxable entities where there is
an intention to settle the balances on a net baS|s

Share capital -
Shares are-classified as equity when there is no obligation to transfer cash or other assets: -
. v /
Dividend distribution :
Dividend distribution to the Companys equity shareholder is recognised in equity in the perlod in which the
dividend is paid.
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- LIVERPOOL VICTORIA GENERAL INSURANCE GROUP LIMITED CONSOLIDATED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

2. Accounting policies (continued)
CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES . ,

(i) New and amended standards adopted by the Group

Although no new standards have come into effect, amendments to IFRSs have been adopted by the EU for
accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. These amendments have been adopted by the Group
but do not have a material impact on the 2016 financial statements.

IAS 1, ‘Presentation of financial statements’, has been amended as part of the Disclosure Initiative. The -
amendments focus on materiality and aggregation, prlmary statement presentatlon requirements, structure of
notes, and disclosure of accounting policies. .

Other than as set out above, no new or amended accounting standards and mterpretatlons were adopted for
the 2016 financial year.

(ii) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

A number of new standards and amendments to standards and interpretations are effective for annual periods
beginning after 1 January 2017, and have not been applied in preparing these financial statements. None of
these are expected to have a significant effect on the financial statements of the Group, except the following:

IFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’, addresses the classification, measurement and recognition of financial assets
and financial liabilities. It replaces the guidance in IAS 39 that relates to the classification and measurement of
financial instruments. IFRS 9 retains but simplifies the mixed measurement model and establishes three
primary measurement.categories for financial assets: amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVOCI) and fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL). The basis of classification depends on the
entity's business model and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset. Investments in
. equity instruments are required to be measured at FVTPL with the irrevocable option at inception to present
changes in fair value in other comprehensive income without recycling. There is a new expected credit losses
model! that replaces the incurred loss impairment model used in IAS 39. For financial liabilities there were no
"changes to classification and measurement except for the recognition of changes in own credit risk in other
comprehensive income, for liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss. The standard is effective for
accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, or at the latest 1 January 2021 where application of
the standard is deferred in accordance with the above Amendment to IFRS 4 ‘Insurance contracts’. The
Company will adopt IFRS 9 from 1 January 2018, however the consolidated Group will defer IFRS 9. The Group
will assess the impact on the accounting for both financial instruments in accordance with IFRS 9 and insurance
contracts following the publication of the Insurance Contracts standard IFRS 17.

Amendment to IFRS 4 ‘Insurance contracts’: Applying IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ with IFRS 4 ‘Insurance
Contracts’, effective from 1 January 2018. This amendment has been issued to address concerns arising from
the different effective dates of IFRS 9 and the forthcoming insurance contracts Standard. The amendment
provides two approaches that can be applied by eligible insurers; the overlay approach and the temporary
exemption from IFRS 9. The Group is an eligible insurer and intends to take the temporary exemption from
IFRS 9 due to the uncertainty regarding accounting for insurance contracts and the impact of this upon the -
classification of financial assets. The Company is not an eligible insurer and will adopt IFRS 9 from 1 January
2018. .

IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’ provides a principles-based approach for revenue recognition
that is underpinned by the achievement of performance obligations. It replaces IAS 18 ‘Revenue’ and is
effective from 1 January 2018. The Group is currently assessing the impact of this new standard; the standard
does not apply to business classified as insurance contracts, the impact is therefore expected to be confined -
primarily to fee and commission income.
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2. 'Accounting policies (continued)
CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIE‘SA(continued)
(ii) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted (céntinued)

IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of
leases. It replaces IAS 17 ‘Leases’ and is effective from 1 January 2019.. Information disclosed by lessees and
- lessors will enable users of financial statements to assess the effect that leases have on the financial position,
financial performance and cash flows of the entity. The standard has been reviewed and it is expected that
leases currently classified as operating leases will require recognition on'the Statement of Financial Position at
the present value of minimum lease payments. Assets and liabilities will be increased; however the net
Statement of Financial Position and Statement of Comprehensive Income impact is expected to be immaterial.

IFRS 17 ‘Insurance Contracts’ was issued on 18 May 2017 and sets out the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of Insurance contracts. It replaces IFRS 4 ‘Insurance contracts’ and
is effective from 1 January 2021. The Group is yet to fully assess the final standard but as an insurance group
the standard is likely to have a material impact on the presentation and disclosures within the financial
statements when it is adopted.

‘There are no other IFRSs or IFRIC interpretations that are not yet effective that would be expected to have a
material impact on the Group.

3. Significant accodnting judgements, estimates and assﬁmptions
In applying the Group’s accounting policies, the Directors have made the following judgements, estimations and
assumpttons which have the most significant effect on the financial statements. :

Impairment testing of goodwill and other intangible assets

The Group determines whether goodwill and other intangible assets are impaired at least on an annual basis.
This requires an estimation of the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the goodwill is
allocated. The LVFS group has allocated the goodwill to a single cash. generating unit, general insurance,
based on the key operating segments of the Group. -

\

Details of the key assumptlons used in the estimation of the recoverable amounts and the carrymg value at the
reporting date are contained in note 14. ’

Fair value of financial assets

In the absencé of an active market, estimation of fair value is achieved by using valuation techniques such as
recent arm’s length transactions, discounted cash flow analysis, the application of suitable indices to earlier
_valuations and option pricing models. This valuatlon will also take into account the marketability of the assets

being valued.

Valuation of general insurance contract liabilities

The estimation of the ultimate liability arising from claims made under insurance contracts is the Groups most
critical accounting estimate. For general insurance contracts estimates are made for the expected ultimate cost
of claims as at the Statement of Financial Position date and the cost of claims incurred but not yet- reported to
the Group. It can take a significant period of time before the ultimate cost of claims can be established with
certainty, and the final outcome may be better or worse than that provided. While the Directors believe that the
insurance contract liabilities carried at year end are adequate, the application of statlstlcai techniques requires
significant judgment.

The estimation of these claims is based on historical experience projected forward. Where possible, the Group
adopts multiple techniques to provide a best estimate of the required level of provisions. This assists in
developing greater understanding of the trends inherent in the data being projected. The Group's estimates of
losses and loss expenses are reached after a review of several commonly accepted actuarial projection
methodologies, as well as more bespoke methods and a number of different bases to determine these
provisions. These include methods based upon the following:
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3. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions (cqntinued)
Valuation of general insurance contract liabilities (continued)

¢ the development of previously paid claims, where payments to date are extrapolated for each prior
year;
estimates based upon a projection of claims numbers and average cost
incurred claims development, where incurred claims to date for each year are extrapolated based upon
observed development of earlier years; and
- o expected loss ratios:

There are several sources of uncertalnty that need to be con5|dered in the estimate of the Ilablllty that the
Group will ultimately pay for such claims. In particular, motor insurance policies are exposed to claims for.bodily
injury and household insurance policies are exposed to claims for subaldence

The estimation of the ultimate cost of large bodily injury claims follows a more complex stochastic process given
that these claims typically exhibit low frequency and high severity, and hence the outcome is highly uncertain.
Significant factors that affect the large injury claims estimation process are legislation (e.g. the Ogden discount
rate used to value lump sum settlements), judicial decisions and the long delay to settlement. Over the last
decade, there has been an increasing prevalence of Periodic Payment Order (‘PPQ’) settlements given that the
‘Ogden discount rate was set at 2.5% and at a time when real yields were very low. These settlements have an
annuity-type structure, i.e. they are typically paid annually over the claimant's life with mortality, inflation and
investment returns being the key risks. Courts may decide that a claim should be settled on a PPO basis, but in
some cases the claimant will request for a PPO settlement. Due to all these factors, the future development of
bodily injury claims have a high degree of uncertainty compared to non-injury claims.

On 27 February 2017, the Lord Chancellor announced a change in the Ogden discount rate from 2.5% to minus
0.75%. This change impacted the valuation-of the cost of care element of large injury claims, and required
insurance companies to hold more money in reserves in order to match the inflation risk in the long term. The
impact.of this Ogden change has led to an adverse pre-tax profit impact of £138.5m (IFRS basis post LPT/QS)
for the Group and has significantly impacted other insurers in the market. The change in the Ogden discount
rate is expected to make lump sum settlements more attractive to claimants than PPO settlements, without
reducing the cost of a PPO claim. Overall PPO claims reserves should reduce due to lower propensity but these
‘claims would be replaced by more expensive lump sum settiements.

Large claims impacting each relevant business-class are geheraliy assessed separately, being measured either
at the face value of the loss adjusters’ estimates or projected separately in order to allow for the future
development of large claims.

Provisions are initially calculated gross of any reinsurance recoveries. A separate estimate is made of the
amounts that will be recoverable from reinsurers based upon the gross prowsmns and having due regard to
" collectability. .

Claims provisions are subject to close scrutiny both within the Group and across the wider LVFS -group. The
Group has a Reserving Committee with the purpose of reviewing reserves, challenging the assumptions made
by the Directors and recommending the level of reserves held. This committee operates as a forum for the
discussion and challenge of the actuarial best estimate and booked claims provisions. External actuaries are
also engaged on an annual basis to calculate an independent best estimate of_ the ultimate cost of claims
against which the Group’s best estimate is assessed.
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3. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumpti'ons (continued)

Classmcatlon of the Group’s contracts with reinsurers as reinsurance contracts 4
Management have applied judgement in determining whether contracts entered into with reinsurers transfer
significant insurance risk and can  therefore be accounted for as reinsurance contracts. In makmg this
judgement management review all terms and ‘conditions of each contract. and obtain the opinion of an
_.independent expert where necessary

- In order for significant insurance risk to be transferred the foIIowmg conditions must both be met:

e ltis reasonably possible that the reinsurer may realise a significant loss from the contract; and
e Thereisa reasonable possibility of a significant range of outcomes from the contract.

In 2015 LV= entered into a loss portfolio transfer agreement to reinsure 20% of the Group’s general insurance
reserves as at 31 December 2015 and in 2016 'LV= entered into a quota share agreement to reinsure 20% of
the Group's general insurance underwriting profits from 1 January 2016 for a period of 3 years. Management
judged that significant insurance risk has been transferred in both these contracts following a review of the
terms and conditions of the contracts.

Other

The judgements, estimations and assumptlons around financial assets and claims judgements are discussed in
Note 4.
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4. Capital management and risk management and control

The Group maintains a capital structure which consists of a combination of eduity and borrowings and a limited
capital drawdown facility available on call from LVFS, consistent with the Group's risk profile and the regulatory
and market requirements of its business. ,

The Group retains capltal to meet four key objectlves

(i) Toensure the Group’s strategy can be implemented and is financially sustainable;
(i) To ensure the Group's financial strength and to support the risks it takes on as part of its business;
“(iii) To give confidence to policyholders and other stakeholders who have relationships with the Group; and
(iv) To comply with capltal requirements |mposed by its UK regulator, the Prudential Regulation Authority
(PRA).

- At least annually these objectives are reviewed and benchmarks are set by which to judge the adequacy of the
Group's capital. The capital position is monitored against those benchmarks to ensure that sufficient capital is
available to the Group. In the event that sufficient capital is not available plans would be developed either to
raise additional capital through, for example, issuing shares or subordinated loans, or to reduce the amount of
risk accepted thereby reducing the capital requirement through, for example, reinsurance or a change in
investment strategy. If it becomes apparent that excess capital is available to the Group above its potential

' needs such excess would normally be returned to shareholders.

In the latter part of 2015 the Group entered into a Loss Portfollo Transfer Agreement resulting in reinsurance of
20% of its booked reserves. The Group also entered into a 20% Quota Share arrangement for 2016-2018
(each year treated separately). The primary driver of both transactions was efflment capital management.

Since 1 January 2016' the regulated insurance companies within the Group have calculated and reported their
capital position under the Soilvency |l regime. There are two separate capital requirements; the Minimum Capital
Requirement (‘MCR’) and the Solvency Capital Requirement (‘SCR'). The SCR can be calculated using a
" Standard Formula, as specified in the regulatory text, or an Internal Model, which is unique to each firm and
must be approved by the firm’s local regulator. The regulated insurance companies within the Group used the
Standard Formula to calculate their capital requirements throughout 2016, but expect to move to an Internal
Model following PRA review and approval.

The Group itself is not regulated but the Group contains regulated entities. The Group disclosed Solvency |l
Eligible own funds of £460.1m (2015: £510.3m) being the Eligible own funds of Liverpool Victoria Insurance
Company-Limited, including-its subS|d|ary Highway Insurance Company Limited, as stated in the 2016 year—end
Solvency II return

The Group complled with all externally imposed capital requirements that it was subject to throughout the
reporting period. v
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4. Capltal management and risk management and control (contmued)

Risk management and control
The principal- types of risk, which are detailed below, have been identified and risk appetite for each of these
has been set by reference to the PRA’s Solvency Il capital requirements.

The Group recognises the critical importance of having efficient and effective risk management systems in
place and these take the form of:

« " Board and Executive committees with clear terms of reference :
A clearorganisation structure with documented apportionment of responsibilities.
A uniform methodology of risk assessment, which is embedded within all companies in the LVFS Group -
so that they operate within agreed tolerances and with appropriate controls in place.
A Statement of Risk Strategy and Appetite; which is reviewed annually and adopted by the Directors.
Regular reviews of risks by senior managers, where frequency of review is determined by the potentral
impact of the risk and its likelihood.

a) Insurance risk

-. The Group’s insurance activities are primarily concerned with the pricing, accepting and management of rlsks
from its policyholders. In accepting risks the Group commits to paying claims and therefore these risks must be
_understood. The Group manages these rrsks through its underwriting strategy, reinsurance arrangements and
proactive claims handling. -

For a portfolio of insurance contracts where the theory of probability is applied to pricing and provisioning, the
principal risk that the Group faces under its insurance contracts is the risk that actual claims exceed the-carrying
value of the Group’s claims reserves. The risk arises from the inherent uncertainties as to the occurrence,
amount and timing of insurance claims. For general ‘insurance contracts this is primarily represented by
exposure to risks which may lead to significant claims in terms of frequency or value. These would include
significant weather events, subsidence and large single .claims arising from either the motor business (injury
claims) or SME business (liability and/or property claims). There is also a risk that the prices charged for
unexpired risks to which the Group is contractually committed may prove to be insufficient to absorb the cost of
the claims which they will generate and any related deferred acquisition cost. Procedures are in place to
measure, monitor and control exposure to all these risks. .

‘Experlence shows that the larger the portfolro of similar insurance contracts, the smaller the relative variability
about the expected outcome will be. In addition, a more diversified portfolio is less likely to be affected by a
‘change in any subset of the portfolio. The Group has developed its insurance underwriting strategy to diversify -
the type of insurance risks accepted and within each of these categories to achieve a sufflcrently Iarge‘
population of risks to reduce the variability of the expected outcome.

Property business (domestic and commercial) is exposed to catastrophic risks such as those resulting from
storms or floods as well as risks such as subsidence. The Group has entered into reinsurance contracts which
provide protection against catastrophic weather events.

~ Motor business is exposed to the risk of large bodily injury claims, wnere the claim amounts can be significant
due to the cost of care required for the claimant. The Group has entered into excess of loss reinsurance
contracts which reduce its exposure to large claims. The Group’s retention is £5 Om per claim (2015: £5.0m per .
claim).

SME business is exposed to large individual property losses and also to liabilities arising from'employm'ent and
commercial activities. - The Group has entered into reinsurance contracts which provide protection agalnst these
liabilities.

29



LIVERPOOL VICTORIA GENERAL INSURANCE GROUP LIMITED CONSOLIDATED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

4. Capital management and risk management and control (continued)

a) Insurance risk (continued)

In addition to the reinsurance contract described on the previous page, the Group has also entered into a Loss
Portfolio Transfer agreement resulting in reinsurance of 20% of its booked reserves. The Group also entered
into a 20% Quota Share arrangement for 2016-2018 (each year treated separately). Whilst the primary driver of
~ these transactions was efficient capital management, the contract also has the effect of reducing the Group’s
exposure to general insurance concentration risk.

The table below sets out the concentration of general insurance contract liabilities by type of contract

2016 o 2015
Gross Reinsurance . Net Gross Reinsurance . Net
o £000 £000 £000 £000 . "£000 £000
Motor 1,283,941 (407,737) 876,204 1,066,964  (325,838) 741,126
Household 59,477 (10,530) 48,947 72,205 (14,441) 57,764
Travel , 2,090 (296) 1,794 1,783 ' (356) 1,427
Commercial .. 209,282 (53,885) 155,397 206,295 - .(44,242)° 162,053
Other © 7,163 (38) 7,125 5,675 (1,135) 4,540
1,561,953 (472,486) .- 1,089,467 1,352,922 (386,012) 966,910

The claims provision is the estiméted cost of outstanding claims from expired risks. The provision is calculated
largely from using the Group’s historic claims development data. How much the past claim development will
reflect future claims development will be impacted by the following factors:

- Changes in actuarial processes and methodology.
Changes in risk profile.
Changes in underwriting, rating and policy conditions.
Changes in legislation and regulation e.g. PPOs, Ministry of Justice reforms, changes to the Ogden
discount rate, etc. ' '
e Changes in.other external factors e.g. “claims farming”/accident management firms.

It is therefore important that the impact of these items on claims development is understood. Whilst every effort
has been made to ensure the claims provision appropriately allows for such changes, there remains uncertainty
in the eventual reserve outcome as a result. This uncertainty can change from year to year depending on the
timing and magnitude of these items.

The estimation of the ultimate cost of large bodily injury claims follows a more complex stochastic process given
that these claims typically exhibit low frequency and high severity and hence the outcome is highly uncertain.
Significant factors that affect the large injury claims estimation process are legislation (e.g. the Ogden discount
rate used to value lump sum settlements), judicial decisions and the long delay to settlement. Over the last
decade, there has been an increasing prevalence of Periodic Payment Order (‘PPO’) settlements given that the .
Ogden discount rate was set at 2.5% p.a. and at a time when real yields were very low. These settlements have
an annuity-type structure, i.e. they are typically paid annually over the claimant's life with mortality, inflation and
" investment returns being the key risks. Courts may decide that a claim should be settled on a PPO basis, but in
some cases the claimant will request a PPO settlement. Due to all these factors, the future development of
bodily injury claims have a high degree of uncertainty compared to non-injury claims.

On 27 February 2017, the Lord Chancellor announced a change in the Ogden discount rate from 2.5% p.a. to
_ minus 0.75% p.a. This change impacted the valuation of the cost of care element of large injury claims, and
required insurance companies to hold more money in reserves in order to match the inflation risk in the long
term. The impact of this Ogden change has led to an increase in. bodily injury reserves of £138.5m for the
Group and has significantly impacted other insurers in the market. The change in the Ogden discount rate is -
expected to make the lump sum settlement more attractive to claimants than .a PPO settlement, without
reducing the cost of a PPO claim. Overall PPO claims reserves should reduce due to Iower propensity but these
claims would be replaced by more expensive lump sum settlements
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4. Capital management and risk maﬁagement and control (continued)
a) Insurance risk (continued)

,Thé table below provides a sensitivity analysis of the potential impact of a change in the discount rate used to
value PPOs and a change in the Ogden discount rate, with all other assumptions left unchanged.

Increase / (decrease) in ~ Increase / (decrease) in
. Profit before tax total equity at 31 December
2016 © 2015 . 2016 2015
£m £m £m £m
'PPOs , ' | '
Impact of a 1% increase in the dlscount rate _ 8.0 191 6.4 15.3
~used to value PPOs S .
Impact of a 1% reduction in the d:scount rate (11.0) (29.2) . (8.8) ' (23.4)
used to value PPOs - : : '
Ogden.discour‘lt f_ate
" Impact of an increase in the Ogden discount -58.0 o n/a ' 46.4 n/a
rate of 1% p.a. : E
Impact of an decrease in the Ogden discount (79.0) n/a (63.2) ' - nla

rate of 1% p.a.

1. The sensitivities relating to an increase or decrease in the Ogden discount rate |Ilustrate a movement in the
value from the currentlevel of -0.75% p.a. .
2. The selection of these sensitivities should not be interpreted as a prediction.

The tables on the following page reflect the cumulative incurred claims including both claims notified and
incurred but not reported (‘IBNR’) for each successive accident year at each Statement of Financial Position
date, together with the cumulative payments to date. The Group aims to maintain approprlate reserves in order
to protect against adverse future clalms experience and developments
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4. Capital management and risk management and control (continued)

a) Insurance risk (continued)-

Analysis of claims development — gross of reinsurance

2014 2015 2016  Total

- Liability in respect
of prior accident

Accident year’ 2007 2008 - 2009 2010 -. 2011 2012 2013
- £m £m £m £m £m £fm '~ £m £m £m £m . £m .

Initial estimate of _ »
gross provision - 560.1 - 539.6 606.9 771.3 906.4 1,086.1 1,074.7 1,049.2 1,046.7 1,146.4

One year later 5126 540.2 589.2 823.0 9125 1,039.3 1,013.1 998.1 1,097.4

Two years later 489.4 500.2 - 589.2 8385 899.3 1,015.2 097.2 980.1 .

Three years later  486.0 490.0 5879 8325 8921 989.6 984.2.

Four years later 4876 491.0 603.3 8229 889.1 9783

Five years later -~ 4924 4872 598.6 827.2 8731

Six years later 4947 4806 598.3 - 828.6

Seven years later 4954 480.1 576.9.

Eight years later 497.3 4546

Nine years later 493.2

Current estimate

of cumulative : . _ :

claims ' 4932 4546 5769 8286 8731 9783 984.2 0980.1 1,0974 1,146.4 8,412.8
Cumulative _ : A

payments to date  (474.2) (451.3) (570.7) (773.1) (842.9) (910.2) (820.3) (765.1) (756.3) (551.6) (6,915.7)
Liability for 2007
~'to 2016 accident o o '
years 19.0 3.3 6.2 55,5 30.2 68.1 .163.9 2150 3411 5948 1,497.1

42.4

years

Claims handling

provision 17.5

Unexpired risk :

provision 5.0
1,562.0

Provision as at 31 December 2016
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4, Cavpital management and risk management and control .(cont'inued).

ja) Insurance risk (continued)

Analysis of claims development - net of reinsurance '

2010

2013 2014 2015 2016

Accident year 2007 2008 2009 2011 2012 Total
£fm  £m £m £m £fm £m £m £fm = £m £m  £m
initial estimate of . :
net provision . 505.8 506.8 5840 7620 897.21,060.6 1,055.0 1,036.5 913.7 1,000:8
Oneyearlater . . 4629 4829 578.0 8029 897.1 1,021.9 9927 931.8 1,005.5
Two years later 4401 4639 564.7 819.0 891.1 1,000.6 940.7 9214
Three years later 4411 456.7 562.1 8054 8855 962.0 9348
Four years later 4301 4576 5769 7959 8720 9528
_ Five years later 431.2 4535 5701 7949 8604
Six years later 431.0 4518 566.2 7875
Seven years later 431.1 450.0 560.0
Eight years later 429.3 4510 !
Nine years later 468.7 ‘
Current estimate
of cumulative , : .' '
claims 468.7 451.0 . 560.0 787.5 4860.’4 952.8 9348 921.4 1,005.5 1,000.8 7,942.9
Cumulative ‘ : '
payments to date  (467.2) (449.5) (557.1) (767.7) (841.4) (910.2) (819.0) (765.1) (756.3) (551.6) (6,885.1)
Liability for 2007
to 2016 accident v ' _
years 1.5 1.5 29 19.8 19.0 426 1158 156.3 249.2 - 449.2 .1,057.8
- Liability in respect ‘ to
of prior accident
years. 9.5
Claims handling
~ provision - 17.2
Unexpired risk .
provision 5.0
Provision as at 31 December 2016
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4. Capital management and risk management and control (continued)
b) Financial risk

i) Market risk

Market risk is the risk of adverse or favourable |mpacts due to ﬂuctuatlons in bond yields, equity prices, interest
rates, or exchange rates. The Group has defined policies and procedures in place to control the major
components of market risk. Exposures to individual companies and to equity shares in aggregate are monitored
by Investment and Asset & Liability Committees in order to ensure compliance with the relevant regulatory limits
for solvency purposes and with guidelines set for each internal fund. Securities held are primarily listed and
fraded on recognised stock exchanges, predominantly in the UK.

Limits on the Group’s exposure to equities are defined both in aggregate terms and by geography, industry and
counterparty. The level of investment holdings is reviewed quarterly by the Board’s Investment Committee.
Tactical asset allocation meetings are held-monthly or more regularly if required, and strategic asset allocation
meetings quarterly, to discuss investment return and concentration and to agree any changes required.

Interest rate risk
The fair value of the Group’s portfolio of fixed income securities.is inversely correlated to changes in market
rates. Thus if interest rates fall the fair value of the portfolio would tend to rise and vice-versa.

The Group monitors interest rate risk by calculating the mean duration of the investment portfolio. The mean

_duration is an indicator of the sensitivity of the assets to changes in current interest rates. The mean duration of
the assets is determined by means of projecting expected cash flows from the.assets held. The liabilities are
undiscounted and so unaffected in current value by changes in interest rates. -

The Group manages this riék through an active use of gilt yield hedges in the form of contracts for differences.

Credit spread risk
In- addition to interest rate risk, descrlbed above, a widening of corporate bonds spreads over and above risk-
free yields will lead to a fall in the fair value of the Group’s portfollo of corporate bonds and vice-versa. :

The Group monitors credit spread risk by regularly reviewing its exposure to corporate bonds by industry credit
rating and duration. The liabilities are undlscounted and so unaffected in current value by changes in credlt
spreads. : :

Equity risk

The Group’s objective is to earn competitive relative returns by lnvestlng in a diverse portfolio of high quality

. securities. Holdings are diversified across industries and concentrations in any one ‘group or mdustry are
limited by parameters established by the Investment Committee. :

The Group also :make use of derivatives to manage this risk.

Currency risk
The Group operates predominantly within the UK, although it has some exposure to foreign currencies through
its investment portfolio ‘and financial liabilities. The main currency exposures are the Euro and the US Dollar.

~The Group's general policy is to run no foreign exchange risk. However the Group’s Investment Managers may
from time to time run a small exposure having agreed. any such exposure with the Investment Committee. An
open Euro position is maintained to hedge the subordinated note (see Note 29) and other minor insurance
liabilities. The Group purchases forward foreign exchange contracts to hedge the exposure to foreign exchange
movements. :
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4. Capital mahagement and risk management and control (continued)
b) Financial risk (continued) '
i) Market risk (continued)

The Group'é exposure to foreign exchange risk is summarised below:

-USD

7

: ' : ‘ , Euro Total
‘As at 31 December 2016 K . __£000 £000 £000
Receivables arising out of insurance operations,
Reinsurers' share of insurance contract liabilities X : - 10,592 .- 10,592
Cash and cash equivalents . ‘ ” . 876 11,908 12,784
Insurance contracts : : - (12471)  (12,171)
. _Financial liabilities. _ -
- Other. - _ : - (10,243) (10,243)
- Derivative financial instruments - liabilities - (1,239) - (1,239)
Total exposure . , S .. (363) 86 - (277)
: - . : usD Euro Total
As at 31 December 2015 ' - - £000 . £000 ~ £000
Financial assets at fair value through income B o
- Shares, other variable yield securities and units in unit trusts : 185 - 185
- Shares, other variable yield securities and units in unit trusts - impairment 185 - 185

. - Debt-and other fixed income securities - 528 528
Receivables arising out of insurance operations . .

- Reinsurers' share of insurance contract liabilities . ‘ - 8,994 -8,994
Cash and cash equivalents . . ‘ " 488 11,795 12,283
Insurance contracts A : - (12,198)  (12,198)
Financial liabilities C '

- Other : ' ' , . - (8,844) (8,844)
- Derivative financial instruments - liabilities (862) - (862)
Total exposure : : : _(4) 275 271

~ The sensitivity of investment assets to a.10% increase/decrease in US Dollar and Euro exchange rates net of
derivatives is £36,300 (2015: £400) and £8,600 (2015: £27,500) respectively. In determining the percentage
rates to use in this sensitivity analysis the movements in the actual market rates of Euro and US Dollars during
2016 were taken into account. The above table incorporates all material currency risk to Profit before tax.
Therefore, a 10% increase/decrease across all currencies could impact Profit before tax by up to £44,900

~ (2015: £27,900).
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4. Capital management and risk management and control (continued)
b) Financial Risk (continued)
i) Market risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis to market risks -

The table below shows the results of sensitivity testing on the Group’s pre- tax profit and equity. The sensitivity
analysis indicated the effect of changes in market risk factors arising from the impact of the changes in these
factors on the-Group’'s financial assets and liabilities. The sensitivities in the table can be impacted by the use of
derivative financial instruments, which are detailed in Note 20.

Impact on " Impact on

proflt before Impact on  profit before Impact on
tax equity . ' tax equity
2016 2016 2015 2015
£000 £000 £000 £000
Interest rate risk ' .
+ 100 basis points shift in yleld curve (note-1) . (43,699) (34,959) ' - -
+ 50 basis points shift in yield curve (note 1) - - -(8,483) (6,786)
- 50 basis points shift in yield curve ‘ 25,247 20,197 8,609 . 6,887
Credit spread risk ‘ ’ ' v .
100 basis points widening in aII credit spreads (15,696) . (12,557) (16,371) (13,097)
100 basis points tlghtenmg in all credit spreads . . .
(note 2) - - 15,902 12,721
50 basis points tlghtenmg in all credit spreads . ' .
(note 2) 8,026 6,422 - ' -
Equity risk (including derivatives) '
20% increase in equity markets 1,443 1,155 17,248 13,799
20% decrease in equity markets (27,080) (21,664) (21,560) (17,248)

note 1: Interest rate risk sensmwty was calculated ona +100 basis point shift in the yield curve for 2016. For
. 2015 this was calculated on a +50 basns point shift.

note 2: Credit spread risk sensitivity was calculated on a 50 basis pomt tightening in credit spreads for 2016.
For 2015 this was calculated on a 100 basis point tightening..

ii) Credit counterparty risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty fails to meet its contractual obllgatlons in full as they fall due, resulting
in a financial loss to the Group. The key areas of exposure to credit risk for the Group ‘are in relation to its
investment portfolio and reinsurance programme and amounts due from insurance intermediaries and
policyholders. ,

The Group structures the levels of credit risk it accepts by placmg limits on its exposure to a single counterparty,
or groups-of counterparties, and to geographical and industry segments.

Investments are primarily allowed only in liquid securities and with counterparties that have a credit rating equal
to investment grade or better. Given their high credit ratings the Directors do not expect any counterparty to fail
to meet its obllgatlons Counterparty exposure is subject to regular review.

Reinsurance exposures are monitored regularly. The Group assesses the credit worthiness of all reinsurers by
reviewing public ratmg information and from internal investigations. :
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4. Capital management and risk management and control (continued)
'b) Financial risk (continued)
i) Credit counterparty risk (continued)

Exposure to insurance intermediaries risk is managed via a stringent c_redit policy. The Group’s credit control
function monitors the ageing and collectability of debtor balances, with credit evaluations performed on all
relevant counterparties. Intermediary debt at 31 December 2016 was £86.7m (2015: £84.3m), none of which
was rated. : '

The Group also reduces its exposure to credit risk related to intermediaries by dlversmcatlon through the use of
a significant. number of brokers.

Exposure to policyholder risk is managed by a credit default policy. The policy servicing function monitors the
ageing of policyholder balances, where policies are sold on instalment terms; and will cancel policies at the
point of default. When the debt goes into arrears it is managed to ensure it is 'coIIected where possible

In addition to the above the Group also monitors the debt via the Asset & Llablllty and Intermeduary CoIIectlon
-Committees and provides against older debts.

The insurance receivables predominantly relate to receivables due from policyholders, agents and brokers
which has no default risk by nature. The concentrations of credit risk with respect to insurance receivables are
limited due to the size and spread of the Group's trading base. No further credit risk provision is therefore
required in excess of the normal provision for doubtful receivables.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk by investment grade is summarised below:

Total exposure

AAA AA A BBB Below Not rated Total
. : BBB
Credit risk exposure 2016 £000 £000 £000 - £000 £000 £000 £000
' Debt and other fixed income o , )
securities S 281,885 140,285 294,014 333,618 75,571 1,826 1,127,199
Cash and cash equivalents - 71,437 208,131 28,378 - - 2,501 310,447
" Loans and other receivables - - 200,000 - - - 30,950 - 230,950
Insurance receivables - - 16,887 - - 258,876 275,763 -
Reinsurance assets - 440,019 49,038 - - " 194 489,251
Total exposure 281,885 651,741 768,070 361,996 75,571 294,347 2,433,610
AAA AA A BBB Below Not rated Total
. BBB :
Credit risk exposure 2015 £000 £000 £000  £000 £000 £000° £000
Debt and other fixed income ‘ :
securities 265,683 168,324 242,164 335,140 56,751 3,411 1,071,473
Cash and-cash equivalents’ 4,491 236,069 304,117 100,786 40,005 - - 685,468
Loans and other receivables Co- - 2,948 - - 5,269 - 8,217 .
Insurance receivables - o= 91 - - 237,434 237,525
Reinsurance assets . - - 348,008 42,400 - - 8,022 398,430
270,174 752,401 591,720 435926 96,756 254,136 2,401,113
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4. Capital management and risk management and control (cohtinued)

b) Financial risk (continued)

ii) Credit counterparty risk (continued)

Offsetting financial assets and fmanclal Ilabllltles
Financial assets and liabilities are offset in the Statement of Financial Position when thie Group intends to apply
a current legally enforceable right to offset. Master netting arrangements and cash collateral are utlllsed by the
Group to minimise credit risk exposure.

.The following financial assets and Ilabllmes are subject to offsettlng, enforceable master netting arrangements

and similar agreements.

An analysis is included of netting arrangements which meet the offsetting criteria within IAS 32 and are set-off in
the Statement of Financial Position and also those which do not meet the criteria.

As at 31 December 2016

Amounts off set.

Related amounts not off set

Gross . (?l.'qss . Net . Financial Cash Coliateral Net
assets liabilities amounts Instruments received amount
off set presented
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Financial assets ]
Total - - - - - -
' Amounts off set Related amounts not off set
Gross Gross Net Financial Cash Collateral.  Net
liabilities assetsoff  amounts Instruments pledged amount .
T set presented ) K
£000 £000 £000 "~ £000 £000 £000
Financial liabilities . : , '
Derivative financial liabilities 22,613 - 22,613 - - 22,613 -
Bank overdrafts 25,554 11,865 13,689 - : - 13,689
Total 48,167 11,865 36,302 - 22,613 13,689
As at 31 December 2015 Amounts off set .Related amounts not off set
Gross : G'qus Net Financial Cash Collateral Net
assets liabilities amounts Instruments received amount
off set presented
. © £000 £000 £000 - £000 £000 £000
- Financial assets , ' o
Derivative financial assets 1,859 - 1,859 - 1,480 379
Total 1,859 - 1,859 - " 1,480 379
Amounts off set - Related amounts not off set
Gross Gross ' Net Financial .Cash Collateral - Net
liabilities assets off ~ amounts Instruments pledged. amount.
) . set presented :
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000. £000
Financial liabilities : ' :
Bank overdrafts 24,659 15,059 9,600 - - 9,600
Total 24,659 9,600 - - 9,600

15,059
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4. Capital mah‘agement and risk management and control (continued) - .
'b) Financial risk (continued) o

ii)‘Clredit counterparty risk (continued)

Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities (continued) A

In accordance with IFRS 7 the amount repbrted in the previous table is limited to the amount of the derivative
asset reported in the Statement of Financial Position. No collateral received from the’ counterparty has been
sold or repledged (2015: £nil).

As at 31 December 2016 the fair value of cash collateral held was £nil (2015 £1.6m) and the. fair vafue of cash
collateral pledged was £23.6m (201 5 £nil).

Collateral posted to the -Group by the counterparty to a derivative contract which is valued as being ‘in-the-
money' can be drawn upon following certain events of default as defined in the relevant International Swaps
and Derivatives Association (ISDA) agreement. This includes failure by the counterparty to comply with or
perform any agreement or obligation defined in the ISDA or Credit Support Annex if such failure is not remedied
within 30 days after notice of such failure is given. Bankruptcy of the counterparty to a trade could also result in
collateral posted being drawn upon to mitigate any financial exposure to the Group.

Impairment
"The Group reviews the carrying value of its financial assets at each Statement of Fmanmal Position date. If the
carrying value of a financial asset is impaired, the carrying value is reduced through a charge to the Statement
of Comprehensive Income. As at 31 December 2016 £1.9m (2015: £0.6m) was impaired which primarily relates
to receivables where there is no realistic prospect of recovery. The tables below provide mformatlon regarding
the age analysus of the Group s past due but not impaired assets.
It

Total past  Neither
due but past due

<31 31to 60 61to 90" not nor .
Age analysis of assets past days days days >90 days. impaired impaired Total -
due 2016 - . - - £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
- Insurance recelvables : 3,760 - 404 212 272 4,648 271,115 275,763

Loans and other receivables - - - : - 230,950 230,950

TotaT past Neither
due but past due

. <31 31t060 61to90 . not nor

Age analysis of assets past days days . days >90 days impaired impaired. Total

due 2015 . £000 £000 £000 £000 ~  £000 £000 ~ £000

Insurance receivables 5,144 1,092 324 113 6,673 230,852 . 237,525
. Loans and other receivables - - - - e 8,217 8,217

" The neither past due nor impaired category is mainly made up of policies in instalments.
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4. Capital management and risk management and control (continued)A
b) Financial risk (continued)

m) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group cannot make payments as they become due because there are
insufficient assets in cash form, or in a form that can be converted to cash in a timely fashion at close to fair
- .market value. The Group is exposed to daily calls on its cash resources from claims arising from insurance
contracts it has underwntten

The Group has a IIQUIdIty risk appetite policy which requires that sufficient liquid resources are maintained to
cover net cash outflows both on a business as usual basis and under stressed: conditions. The most significant
payments made are claims, the payment profile of which is predictable. The Group maintains cash and liquid
deposits to meet demands on a daily basis. In normal circumstances, the majority of claims are settled from
cash received from intermediaries and policy holders.

The Group forecasts cash flows on a daily basis to ensure that sufficient liquid funds exist to meet its short term
cash outflows. Any surplus funds are invested to achleve a higher rate of return. :

The majority of mvesgments are held in assets that are traded in active markets.
The table below summarises the expected recovery or settlement of assets:

2016 : . 2015

Within 1 Overt Total Within 1 Over 1 year " Total -

Maturity profile of financial year year B year S

and insurance assets - - £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Financial assets at fair value B . .

through income ' 540,282 1,029,826 - 1,570,108 784,152 ©751,062 1,535,214

Derivative financial instruments ‘ C- - - 1,859 - 1,859

Loans and other receivables 230,950 - 230,950 8,217 - 8,217

Reinsurers’ share of claims ' ' X : :
-outstanding - . . ' 117,034 355,452 472,486 101,966 - 284,046 386,012

Insurance receivables ' 275,763 - 275,763 237,525 .- 237,525

Accrued interest : 19,481 - 19,481 18,356 - 18,356
.Cash and cash equivalents 310,447 - 310,447 685,468 - 685,468

1,493,957 1,385,278 2,879,235 1,837,543 1,035,108 2,872,651

All financial assets for the Company are due within one year for both 2015 and 2016.
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4. Capital management and risk management and control (confinued)
b) Financial risk (continued). ‘ : ' - Y

iii) Liquidity risk (continued)

The table below summarises the estimated maturity profile of the financial liabilities of the Group based on
remaining undiscounted obligations. The maturity profile of insurance contract liabilities is determined based on
the estimated timing of the discounted net cash flows.

Within1 . 1-3years 3-5years - Over5 Total -

Maturity profile of financial and . oyear ' : years -

- insurance liabilities 2016 - . £000 "~ £000 £000 £000 £000
Insurance contract claims liabilities ) 649,933 548,863 227,182 - 135,975 1,561,953
Derivative financial instruments : 18,979 ‘ - . - 3,665 22,644
Subordinated liabilities . - : c- - 10,243 10,243
Insurance payables 29,656 - - - 29,656
Trade and other payables - excludmg tax A
and social securities and deferred income - 131,500 - - - 131,500

830,068 548,863 227,182 149,883 1,755,996

. Within 1 1-3 years 3-5 years Over 5 Total
Maturity profile of financial and insurance year o years

“liabilities 2015 - £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Insurance contract claims liabilities 597,826 506,376 134,977 113,743 1,352,922
Provisions : ' 190 - - . 190
Derivative financial instruments . 23 . - - - .23
- Subordinated liabilities : - - - - 8,844 8,844
Other financial liabilities 1,550 - - ‘ - 1,550
insurance payables - 256,216 - - - 256,216

Trade and other payables - excluding tax '
. and social securities and deferred income 103,936 . - - - . 103,936

959,741 506,376 134,977 122,587 1,723,681

All financial liabilities for the’Company are due within one year for both 2015 and 2016.

" iv) Fair value estimation
The following fair value estimation tables present the Group’s assets and habllltles measured at fair value by
level of the fair value measurement hierarchy at 31 December 2016.

Level 1 — quoted prices

The fair value of financial instruments included in the Level 1 category is based on the value within the bid- ask
spread that is most representative of fair value quoted in an active market at the year-end date. An instrument is
regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange,
dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service or regulatory agency and those prices represent actual and
regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.

Level 2 —~ observable inputs

Level 2 financial instruments are not traded in an actlve market and their fair value is determined using
.valuation techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the use of data from observable current market
transactions (where it is available) using pricing obtained via pricing services, even where the market is not .
active. It also-includes financial assets with prices based on broker quotes.
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4. Capital management and risk management and control (continued)
b) Financial risk (continued)
iv) Fair value estimation (continued) ‘ ’

Level 2 — observable inputs (continued)
Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments classified as Level 2 mclude
¢ Derivatives are valued by discounted cash flow techniques, using observable yleld curves -and models
such as Black Scholes using implied market forward rates and volatilities.
e Units in listed investment funds are valued using quoted prices from external pricing services.
»  Debt securities are valued using quoted prices from external pricing services.

\

Level 3 - significant unobservable mputs
If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in
Level 3.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments classified as level 3 include:

* Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments (unlisted shares).

e The fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated as the present value of the estimated future cash flows
based on observable yield curves of similar instruments.

e - The fair value of forward exchange contracts is determined using forward exchange rates at the Statement
of Financial Position date, with the resulting value discounted back to present value.

e Other techniques, such as discounted cash flow analysrs are used to determine fair value for the remaining
financial instrument.

There were no changes to the valuation techniques during the year. There were no transfers between Ievels 1
and 2 during the year.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event
or change in circumstances that caused the transfer. The valuation of all of the Group’s investment holdings is
performed by independent and qualified valuers. ’

Any changes to fair value are recognised within net gains/losses on mvestments W|th|n the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.

The following table presents the Group’s assets and liabilities measured at fair value at 31 December:

2016 2015

Level 1 Level2 Level3 - Total Level1 Level2 Level 3 Total

£000 ~_£000 £000 ‘£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Fair value through income ' - .

Shares, other

variable yield

securities and units _ ;

in unit trusts - 27,614 414,384 911 442,909 11,201 451,622 918 463,741

Debt and other
fixed income

securities - 1,127,199 - 1,127,199 10,233 1,061,240 - 1,071,473

Derivative financial . '

instruments - (22,644) - (22,644) - : (23) 1,859 1,836
27,614 1,518,939 . 911 1,547,464 21,434 1 512 839 2,777 1,537, 050

The Company had no assets or liabilities requiring disclosure within the fair value measurement hlerarchy as at 31
December 2016 (2015: £3.4m in Level 1).
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‘4. Capital management and risk management and control (continued)
b) Financial risk (continued)
iv) Fair value estimation (continued)

Movement in level 3 instruments measured at fair value:

Shares, other
. variable yield

~ 'securities and Derivative
units in. unit financial .
' trusts instruments Total
. £000 £000 £000
Balance at 1 January 2016 , - ' : ‘918 1,859 2,777
Movement in write off provision . . (7 - (7)
Transfer to level 2 ' ' (610) (610)
. Sales - , : ' - (1,249) (1,249)
Balance at 31 December 2016 - - . o - 911 - 911
Shares, other
variable yield
securities and Derivative
- units in unit financial
trusts instruments Total
o L - £000 £000 £000
Balance at 1 January 2015 ' 1,153 (36,844) (35,691)
Total gain/(loss) recorded in comprehensive income : - (246) . 37,266 37,020
Movement in write off provision 247 - 247
Purchases: . ] : (236) 2,708 2,472
Sales ' ‘ L : - (1,271) (1,271)
1,859 - 2,777

- Balance at 31 December 2015. 918

Sensmwtles of level 3 investments

Changing the inputs for the Group's level 3 assets would not S|gn|fucantly change the fair value

43



'

4.'LI\I,ERPOOL VICTORIA GENERAL INSURANCE GROUP LIMITED CONSOLIDATED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 -

4, Capital management and risk management and control {continued)

b) Financial risk (continued)

iv). Fair value estimation (continuéd)

information about fair value measurements using significant uhobservéble inputs (Level 3):

" Fair value at '

" Unobservable

Range of

Relationship of

2016 31 December Valuation unobservable unobservable
Description 2016 technique(s) Inputs inputs (probability inputs to fair
" £000 : . . weighted average) value
Financial Assets _
Financial Assets held at fair value through income .
Shares, other variable y|eld securities and units in unit trusts
- -Overseas 474 N/A * N/A™* CNAC N/A *
unlisted :
_ Recent arm's _ Distributions or Contractual
- UK unlisted 733 length - Price per unit  calls since last purchase and eX|t
; _ transaction . valuation price
| /
2015 - Fair value at Valuation Unobservable  Range of Relationship of
. Description 31 December - technique(s) Inputs unobservable unobservable
‘ . 2015 : : inputs (probability inputs to fair value
~_£000 weighted average)

Financial Assets ‘ ‘
"Financial Assets held at fair value through income
Shares, other variable yield securities and units in unit trusts

- Overseas 185 N/A * N/A *
unlisted .
- UK unlisted 733 Recent arm's  Price per unit
" length
: . transaction .
Derivative financial instruments
Equity/Index Mark-to- . - S o
Derivatives 1,859 model Equity volatility

N/A™

Distributions or
calls since last
valuation

Could be several
percentage points-

N/A*

Contractual
purchase and exit
price

Higher equity
volatility resuits in
higher contract
value

\

* Due to the nature of these holdings the quantitative unobservable inputs are not developed by the entity when
measuring fair value, and in accordance with IFRS 13 paragraph 93 (d) the Group has not disclosed the

relevant information.
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{. Capital managemenf and risk management and control (continued) |
b) Financial risk (continued) ‘ o .

v) Other risk types

Strategic risk '

Strategic risk is the risk arising from ineffective, inefficient, or inadequate senior management process for the -

development and |mplementat|on of business strategy in relation to the business environment and the Group’s
capabilities.

The strateglc risks of the busmess are assessed and. managed by the business risk committees which then

report these and other significant risks to the LVFS Group Executive Risk Committee, where the risks are
reviewed and challenged. The LVFS Chief Risk Officer reports on an LVFS group wide baS|s all strateglc risks
to the LVFS Board s Risk Committee.

Group risk

Group risk is the risk of contagion incurred from its membership of a group of firms. The LVFS Group Executlve
Risk Committee oversees the management of such risks. '

,The Group ‘has not identified any significant group risks.

Operational risk

. Operational risk is defined as the potential for loss resulting from inadequate or falled internal processes people

and systems or from external events. It is inherent to every part of the business and covers a wide spectrum of
issues. Senior management are responsible for ensuring that the material operational risks as relevant to their
area of responsibilities are identified, assessed and managed using the approach as outlined in the LVFS
Group's Enterprise Risk Management Framework. A formal attestation process provides assurance about the
effectnveness of the overall control environment and reports on any material exceptions. .
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5. Net earned premiums

2016 2015
£000 £000
Insurance contracts
Premiums written : 1,581,441 1,471,918
Change in unearned premium reserve (51,058) (52,084)
Premium revenue arising from msurance contracts |ssued 1,530,383 1,419,834
Reinsurance contracts . _
Premiums payable (345,273) (283,626) -
Change in unearned premium reserve 4,347 (783)
Premium revenue ceded to reinsurers on insurance contracts issued (340,926) (284,409)
"Net earned premiums 1,189,457 1,135,425
Gross premiums earned o
Motor 1,025,493 1 929,037
Property 166,803 170,138
Commercial 251,583 " 238,060
Other 86,504 82,599
1,530,383

1,419,834

Other premium revenue includes Travel, Legal and Pet Insurance.

In the latter part of 2015 the Group entered into a Loss Portfolio Transfer agreement resulting in reinsurance of
20% of its booked reserves as at 31 December 2015. This had an impact of £241.7m on premiums ceded to
reinsurers during 2015. From 1 January 2016 the Group has been part of a Quota Share agreement resulting in
“reinsurance of 20% of its general insurance gross earned premiums. This had an impact of £296 7m on

premiums ceded to reinsurers during 2016. !
There were no premiums in the Company for 2016 (2015: £nil).

6. Investment income

Group Company
2016 2015 2016 . 2015
. . , £000 £000 £000 £000
Income from investments at fair value through income:
- Interest income : 48,783 64,786 - -
- Dividend income - : : 11,802 10,092 3,400 37,980
‘ 60,585 . 74,878 3,400 : 37,980

Dividend income in the Company represents dividends recenved from Liverpool Victoria insurance Company, a

subsidiary of the Company. -
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7. Net (losses)/gains on investments at fair value through income '/

2016 2015
i £000 £000°
(Losses)/gains on investments at fair value through income : v ’
- Debt securities ' o : (12,782) (43,850)
- Equity securities L IR _— S 23,821 3,437
- Derivative financial instruments - ' (24,724) (2,534)
, . . '(13,685) (42,947)

" . Net (losses)/gains on mvestments at fair value through income include net reahsed losses of £31.3m (2015:
Loss £43. 7m) and net unrealised gains of £17.6m (2015: Gam £0.8m).

There were no gains or losses on financial assets held at fair value through income in the Company for 2016
(2015: £nil). » :

8. Other income ' ‘ :
- 2016 - 2015

. : £000 £000
Interest recelvable from insurance contracts . : 30,275 : 25,866
Other income ‘ : 7,330 9,590

: : ‘ 37,605. 35,456
Other income is primarily comprised of fee and commission income.
There was no other income in the Company for 2016 (2015: £nil).
9. Insurance claims and loss adjustment expenses ‘
2016 2015
A £000 © £000
Gross insurance claims : : .
Claims paid during the year - : ‘ : 998,560 910,124
Claims management costs ' : 67,100 61,549
Movement in claims liabilities : 209,031 46,129
: 1,274,691 1,017,802
Reinsurers’ share of gross insurance claims o )
Current year claims and loss adjustment expenses ' ‘ (216,449) - (3,984)
‘Movement in reinsurers' share of claims liabilities (86,474) = (261,346)
S Co - (302,923) (265,330)
Net insurance claims - ' 971,768 752,472

included within claims incurred is an increase of £53.5m in.respect of motor insurance business (2015: £93.2m
decrease) and a decrease of £7.6m in respect of non-motor insurance business (2015: £2.1m increase), being
the difference between the provision for claims outstanding at the beginning of the year less payments made in
respect of claims incurred in prior years and the claims outstanding at the end of the year in respect of those
claims. These have been calculated excluding margin and include the |mpact of the Ogden discount rate
change

In the latter part of 2015 the Group entered into a Loss Portfolio Transfer agreement resulting in reinsurance of
20% of its booked reserves as at 31 December 2015. This had an impact of £241.7m on the Movement in
reinsurers’ share of claims liabilities. From 1 January- 2016 the Group has been part of a Quota Share
agreement whereby the reinsurer is liable for 20% of general msurance claims paid. This had an impact of
£233.9m on clalms ceded to reinsurers during 2016.

There were no insurance claims in the Company for 2016 (2015: £nil).
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10. Other operating and administrative expenses ' A .
Group - ' Company

2016 - . 2015 - 2016 2015

: £000 £000 - £000 £000

Investment management expenses and charges - 2,861 3,780 : - -
Acquisition expenses _— . 202,215 . 196,497 - -
Movement in deferred acquisition expenses _ (2,826) (1,413) Lo -
Auditors' remuneration -~ . . ’ ' 882 487 e .-
Amortisation of intangibles - . 4,513 3,515 - : -
Administrative expenses : - . 194,855 194,494 . - 19,442
Depreciation ori property and equipment owned a 1,348 1,869 - -
Gross operating and administrative expenses . 403,848 - 399,229 - 19,442
Expenses recoverable from reinsurers * (72,033) . - - .-
»Net operating and administrative expenses - , 331,815 399,229 - 19,442

*Expenses recoverable from reinsurers represent 20% of the costs of the general msurance business WhICh are
borne by remsurers as part of the new Quota Share agreement in 2016..

lncluded within administrative expenses is £nil (2015: £19. 4m) relating to a share-based payment scheme (see
note 37).

11. Auditors' remuneration

2016 . 2015
: £000 , £000
Fees payable to the Group's auditors for the audit of the Company and the
consolidated financial statements , § 15 .- 8
Fees payable to the Group's auditors and its associates for other services: - :
- The audit of the Group's subsidiaries pursuant to legislation o 557 . 425
- Audit related assurance services - o . ©.190 54
- Tax advisory services : A ' 14 - -
- Other non-audit services not covered above : . 106 -
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12. Directors’ emoluments

The Directors of the Company are remunerated by LVFS.

_ The details of Directors’ emoluments below include the total emoluments of those Directors who have a role in
the wider-LVFS group, as well as providing service to the Company. It is not possible to make an accurate

apportionment of these emoluments in respect of each of the s'ubsidiaries within the LVFS group.

The aggregate amount of Directors’ emoluments was as follows:

2016 2015
- £000 .£000
a) Aggregate emoluments . . 5,586 42,627
b) Emoluments of the Directors were as follows:
: Long Term
Deferred Other Incentive .
Salary Bonus Bonus  Benefits " Plan Total Total
2016 2015
' A £000 £000. £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Highest paid Director 398 368 62 102 236 1,166 10,742
All Directors 2,672 953 105 . 500 1,356 5,586 42,627

Deferred bohus represents the amount of the 2016 performance bonus payable over the next three yeérs.

Other benefits include payments in lieu of pension Acontributions, life assurance, car allowances, medical,”
relocation and other benefits in kind or their equivalent monetary value.

LVF\S has made no contributiohs to personal pension arrangements during 2016 or 2015. A

Further details on the Long Term Incentive Plan are disclosed within the Financial Statements of LVFS.

c¢) Pension arrangements
- The LV= Employee Pension Scheme is admlmstered at LVFS group level and incorporates both a defined

benefit section and defined contribution section. The defined benefit section was closed to future accrual .in
2013 at which point existing members were eligible to join the defined contribution section.
In 2016 there were £57,812 of contributions to the defined contribution section (2015: £73,371 ).

Further details of the LV= EmponeeAPension Scheme are disclosed within the financial statements of LVFS.

‘ 2016 2015
Deferred pension at end of period : : £000 £000
All Dlrectors : » ‘ 141 210
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13. Income tax (credit)/expenée

a) Current year tax (credit)/expense :
Group Company

2016 2015 - 2016 2015
£000 £000 £000 £000
Current year tax (credit)/expense : ( , .
Corporation tax in respect of current year : (4,311) 12,348 - -
Adjustment to current tax in respect of prlor years (60) (46) . - - -
Total current tax » _ (4371) 12,302 - -
Deferred tax . :
Adjustment to deferred tax in respect of prior years 84 (56) - - -
- Tax losses _ ' , (3,949) - - . -
Temporary differences ’ 136 (68) - -
Total deferred tax _ - - (3,729) (124) - -
Total income tax (credit)/expense - - A (8,100) 12,178 - -

- b) Reconclllatlon of tax (credlt)lexpense

The tax assessed for the year is lower (2015: higher) than the standard rate of corporatlon tax in the UK of 20%
. (2015 20. 25%) The differences are explamed below:

Group . Company

2016 2015 - 2016 2015

£000 £000 £000 £000
(Loss)/profit before tax ' (29,974) 50,792 3,400 18,538
(Loss)/profit multiplied by standard rate of corporation tax in ‘ ) _ A
the UK of 20% (2015: 20.25%) o (5,995) - 10,285 . 680 3,754
Effects of: - . — o :
Impact of change in UK corporation tax rate on deferred tax 195 155 - -
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes « . 37 3,875 . - 3,937
Adjustment to deferred tax in respect of prior-years 84 (56) - -
Adjustment to current tax in respect of prior years _ " (60) (46) - -
Income not subject to corporation tax . . (2,361) (2,035) (680) (7,691)
Total income tax (credit)/expense ) (8,100) 12,178 - -
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14. Ihtangible ‘assets

Net book value at 31 D.eeember 2015

6,641

Other :
intangible Software and
Goodwill assets  licence costs Total
£000 ~ £000 ~_£000 £000
- Cost _
At 1 January 2016 185,591 24,092 19,293 228,976
Additions , - - 32,260 32,260
At 31 December 2016 185,591 24,092 - 51,553 - 261,236
Accumulated amortisation . :
At 1 January 2016 - 17,451 1,829 19,280
Amortisation charge for the year - 1,824 2,689 4,513
At 31 December 2016 ' - 19,275 4,518 - 23,793
Net book value at 31 December 2016 185,591 4,81'7 47,035 237,443
Other - Software and
intangible licence costs
Goodwill assets . Total
£000 £000 -£000 £000
Cost : : ‘
At 1 January 2015 185,591 24,092 © 10,641 220,324
Additions - - 8,652 8,652
At 31 December 2015 185,591 24,092 19,203 - 228,976 -
Accumulated amortisation o
At 1 January 2015 - 15,627 138 © 15,765
Amortisation charge for the year - 1,824 1,691 3,515,
- At 31 December 2015 - 17,451 1,829 19,280
185,591 17,464

200,696

- There were no intangible assets held by the Company in 2016 (2015: £nil).

Amortisation and |mpa|rment losses are presented in Other operatlng and administrative expenses in the

Statement of Comprehensive Income.

' Other intangibles primarily comprise the value of the future benefit derived from customer bases recognised on
acquisitions, which are being amortised over periods varying. between 10 and 20 years from the original
acquisition date. These intangible assets will be fully amortised by 2026.
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14. Intangible assets (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill )

Goodwill is reviewed annually for ;mpatrment or more frequently when there are indicators that |mpa|rment may
have occurred, by comparing the carrying value to its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of the cash
generating unit is based on value-in-use calculations. The calculations are .based upon discounting expected
pre-tax cash flows at a risk-adjusted interest rate appropriate to the cash generating unit, the determination of
both of which requires the exercise of judgement. The estimation of pre-tax cash flows is sensitive to the
periods for which forecasts are available and to assumptions regarding the long-term sustainable cash flows.
While forecasts are compared with actual performance and external economic data, expected cash flows reflect
the Directors view of future performance.

Key assumptions used in the impairment testing of goodwill :
The recoverable amount of the general insurance business has been determined using cash flow predictions .
based .on financial plans approved by the Directors covering a five year period, with a terminal growth rate of
2% applied thereafter. The forecast cash flows have been discounted at a pre-tax rate of 9%. Both the growth
rate and the discount rate are consistent with the ranges observed in the market place. Based on the above
assumptions, the recoverable amount exceeded the carrying amount including goodwill by £1,238m. A two
percentage point increase in the discount rate would reduce the recoverable amount by £494m; the ‘discount
rate would need to be increased to 18% to reduce the excess of the recoverable amount over the carrying value
to zero.

For the general insurance business the cash flows used in the financial plans are most sensitive to changes in
the loss ratio. A 1% increase in the loss ratio. would reduce the recoverable amount by £192m, the loss ratio
would need to increase by 6.5% to reduce the excess of the recoverable amount over the carrying value to
zero. Key loss ratio assumptions are based on a combination of historic and current market- place trends, and
management judgement.
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15. Property and equipment

Leasehold Fixtures, Total
property fittings and IT
J enhancements - equipment- o
£000 £000 . £000
Cost , o
At 1 January 2016 /8,347 . 6,911 15,268 =
Additions 57 3,122 3,179
At 31 December 2016 8,404 10,033 18,437
~ Accumulated depreciation _
At 1 January 2016 3,960 - 4,823 8,783
Provided in the year 883 465 1,348
At 31 December 2016 4,843 - 5,288 10,131
Net book value at 31 December 2016 3,561 ) 4,745 8,306
Leasehold 'Fixtures, . Total
- property fittings and IT
" enhancements equipment i
o £000 £000 £000
Cost A
At 1 January 2015 8,287 6,676 "~ 14,963
Additions 66 + 235 301
Disposals (6) - (6).
. At 31 December 2015 8,347 6,911 15,258
Accumulated depreciation . .
At 1 January 2015 , 3,056 3,858 6,914
Provided in the year ) 904 965 1 869
At 31 December 2015 3,960 4,823 8,783
Net book value at 31 December 2015 4,387 2,088 6,475
_There was no property or equipment held by the Company in 2016 (2015 £nil).
~16. Investments in group undertakings
Group . Company .
2016 2015 2016 2015
£000 £000 £000 £000
At 1 January _ ’ - : : - - 678,913 678,913
- 678,913 678,913

" Balance at 31 December . i -

The Company has exammed the carrying value of its investment in subsudlarles and. concluded that no

impairment was necessary in regard to these investments (2015: £nil).
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17. Prepayments and accrued income

2016

2015

. . . £000 - £000
Accrued interest ‘ o ] 19,481 18,356
Other prepayments and accrued income 16,020 11,926
: 35,501 30,282
There were no prepayments and accrued income held by the Company in 2016 (2015: £nil).
18. Defen"ed acquisition costs .
: 2016 2015
: -£000 £000
-At 1 January . . i : 98,906 97,493
Acquisition expenses deferred ‘ ) ’ 202,215 196,497 -
Amortisation , ©(199,389) . (195,084)
At 31 December _ _ 101,732 98,906
.. There were no deferred acquisition costs held by the Company in 2016 (2015: £nil).
19. Financial assets - fair value through income )
' : \ Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
: £000 £000 . £000 £000. -
h h iable yield iti d units i it -
) t?u:{:s' other variable yield securities and units in uni 442,909 463,741 ) 3,400
Debt and other fixed income securities 1,127,199 1,071,473 - -
: 1,670,108 1,535,214 - 3,400
20. Derivative financial instruments-
. 2016 : 2015
Contract/ Fair value - Fair value - Contract/ Fair value -. Fair value -
"notional asset liability notional asset liability
amount ' : amount .
: £000 £000 £000 ~_£000 £000 £000
Interest rate swaps 137,000 - (3,665) - ' - -
Forward exchange contracts 1,370 - (31) 862 - (23)
Equity/index derivatives 396,802 - (18,948) 180,241 1,859 -
: ' 535,172 = (22,644) 181,103 1,859 (23)

The Group-uses derivatives primarily to reduce its exposure to interest rate risk and to protect against falls in
the FTSE 100. The Group has increased its use of fixed income derivatives over 2016 to manage the interest

rate exposure of the Solvency Il surplus.capital position.

There were no derivative financial instruments held by the Company in 2016 (2015: £nil).
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21. Loans and other réceivables , '
: . 2016 2015

, , £000 £000
Reverse repurchase agreements . . o , 200,000 -
Cash collateral pledged ‘ ' ' ST 23,600 .
Other receivables . 7,350 5,269
Deposits with credit institutions ' - 2,948
o C 230,950 8,217

There were no loans and other receivables held by the'Company in 2016 (2015: £nil).

22. Reinsurance assets -

‘ 2016 2015
. : _ , £000 £000
" Reinsurers’ share of provision for unearned premiums+ - 16,765 12,418
Reinsurers’ share of claims outstanding : , 472,486 ° 386,012
: 489,251 398,430

Amounts due from reinsurers in respect of ctalms already paid by the Group on the contracts that are relnsured
are included in insurance receivables.

There were no reinsuran_ée assets held by the Company in 2016 (2015: £nil).

23. Insurance receivables : : '
/ 2016 . 2015

: , £000 £000
Receivables arising from insurance and reinsurance contracts
.- Due from policyholders 172,173 153,056
- Due from agents, brokers and mtermedlarles ' 86,704 . 84,336
- Due from reinsurers : 16,886 133
: 275,763 237,525
- There were no insurance receivables held by the Company in 2016 (2015: £nil).
24. Cash and cash equivalents S =
' - : Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
£000 £000 £000 £000
Bank balances - 21,575 77,647 9 9
Short term bank deposits 288,872 . 607,821 - -
Cash and cash equlvalents per Statement of Fmancnal .
Position 310,447 685,468 9 9
Non-offsettable Bank overdrafts (see note 31) (13,689) (9,600) - -
Cash and cash equlvalents per Statement of Cash ’ , ]
Flows 296,758 675,868 9 9

55



LIVERPOOL VICTORIA GENERAL INSURANCE GROUP LIMITED CONSOLIDATED

- NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

_ 25. Insurance contract Iiabilities '

a) Analysis of insurance contract liabilities

2015

There were no insurance contract liabilities held by ;he Company in 2016 (2015: £nil).
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2016
. Gross . Reinsurance Net Gross Reinsurance Net
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
General insurance claims : ‘ _ ,
- liabilities 1,561,953 (472,486) 1,089,467 . 1,352,922 *(386,012) 966,910
General insurance unearned : : ' _ o
premiums 791,348 (16,765) 774,583 740,290 (12,418) 727,872
2,353,301 (48§,251) 1,864,050 2,093,212 . (398,430) 1,694,782
b) Movement in general insurance claims liabilities
2016 2015
Gross Reinsurance . Net Gross Reinsurance Net
: £000 £000 £000 - £000 £000 £000
OCR 1,367,988 (315,229) 1,052,759 1,271,039 (57,646) 1,213,393
IBNR (15,066) (70,783) (85,849) 35,799 - (67,065) (31,266)
Balance at 1 January 1,352,922 (386,012) - 966,910 1,306,838 (124,711) 1,182,127
- Movement in claims incurred o L A ,
in prior accident years- 31,403 (134,159) (102,756) (101,214) (129,812) (231,026)
Claims incurred in the current ' : '
accident year 1,171,144 (168,764) 1,002,380 1,057,422 (135,473) 921,949
Claims paid during the year (998,560) 216,449 (782,111) (910,124) 3,984 (906 140)
Unexpired risk reserve 5,044 - . 5044 S -
B 209,031 (86,474) 122,557 46,084 (261,301) (215,21 7)
Balance at 31 December 1,561,953 (472,486) 1,089,467 1,352,922 (386,012) 966,910
OCR 1,353,925 - (107,862) 1,246,063 1,367,988 - (315,229) 1,052,759
IBNR 202,984 (364,624) (161,640) (15,066) (70,783) (85,849)
Unexpired risk reserve 5,044 - 5,044 ’ - .- -
Balance at 31 December 1,561,953 (472,486) 1,089,467 1,352,922 ' (386,012) 966,910 -
c) Movement in general insurance unearned premiums
2016 ) 2015 -
Gross Reinsurance - Net Gross Reinsurance Net
: -£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Balance at 1 January 740,290 (12,418) 727,872 688,206 (13,201) . 675,005
Premiums written in the year 1,581,441 .(345,273) 1,236,168 1,471,918 (283,626) 1,188,292
Premiums earned during the _ ‘
year ' (1,530,383) 340,926 (1,189,457) (1,419,834) 284,409 (1,135,425)
~ Balance at 31 December 791,348 (16,765) . 774,583 740,290 . 727,872
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~25. Insurance contract liabilities (continued)

Details of the methodologies used for the premium and claims provisions for motor and household products are
provided below.

Outstanding Claims Reserve (‘OCR’)

The purpose of the OCR is to ensure adequate reserves are in place for known claims. It is calculated by
aggregating the case reserves for all known claims and is generated each month-end by a system driven
calculation. However, the aggregated case reserves may be deemed to be over or understated against the
expected ultimate settlement cost of the known claims and this is allowed for in the IBNR calculation.

Incurred But Not Reported Reserve (‘IBNR’)

The purpose of the IBNR reserve is to reflect the additional claims cost from claims incurred but not reported
before the Statement of Financial Position date, known as ‘pure IBNR' and the cost of any over or
understatement in the OCR, known as Incurred But Not Enough Reported ( IBNER)

IBNR is calculated as part of the quarterly actuarlal reserve reviews using a. comblnatlon of statlstlcallactuarlal
techmques .

These projections are performed on homogeneous groups of claim types. Otherwise, the projections would be
prone to error from changes in mix by claim type.

The claim types modelled for motor products are:

Accidental Damage

Fire & Theft

Windscreen

Third Party Property Damage
Third Party Personal Injury

’i’he’ claim types modelled for household products are:

Accidental Damage (Buildings and Contents separately) .
Escape Of Water (Buildings and Contents separately)
Fire (Buildings and Contents separately)
Theft (Buildings and Contents separately)
Weather (Buildings and Contents separately)
Subsidence (Buildings only)
Freezer Failure (Contents only)
" Personal Possessions
Caravans

Unearned Premium Reserve (‘(UPR’)

The UPR is that proportion of premium received on in-force contfacts that relates to unexpired risks at the
Statement of Financial Position date. This calculation is based on either a daily or monthly pro-rata basis and
forms part of the Insurance Contract Liabilities balance in the Statement of Financial Position. -

Unexpired Risk Reserve (‘(URR’)

If the estimated cost of claims and expenses resulting from claims exceeds the unearned premium reserve,
then an unexpired risk reserve is created equal to this excess. This is a provision for an expected loss. The
expected costs are estimated from the claims ratio, estimated changes in the level of claims, the effect of
reinsurance (which may significantly offset the cost of clalms) and the cost of processmg claims.
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26. Provisions

2016 2015
) - "£000 £000
Balance at 1 January ' o 190 2,888
Provided during the year - 53
Released during the year , (190) (2,751)
Balance at 31 December . : . - 190
" There were no provisions held by the Company in 2016 (2015: £nil).
27. Current tax asset/(liability) : ,
Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
£000 _ £000 £000 £000
At 1 January (802)  (8,272) - (11)
Amounts recorded in the Statement of Com prehenswe Income 4,371 (12,302) - -
Group relief paid 5,416 1,990 - 11
Income tax paid 3,826 17,782 - -
At 31 December 12,811 (802) - -
28. Deferred tax asset/(liability)
. 2016 2015
A £000 £000
At 1 January - (223) - (347)
- Amounts recorded in the Statement of Comprehensive Income 3,729 124
At 31 December 3,506 (223)
Analysis of deferred taxation temporary dlfferences ' £000 £000
Accelerated capital allowances S 1,012 - - 1,457
Trading losses carried forward 3,949 -
Intangible fixed assets (1,455) (1,680)
' 3,506 (223)
The analysis of the deferred tax balance is as follows: : £000 £000
Deferred tax asset/(liability) expected to be recovered/(settled) after more than
12 months _ - 2,127 (161)
Deferred tax asset/(liability) expected to be recovered/(settled) within 12 :
months » 1,379 (62)
Net deferred tax asset/(liability) : . 3,506 - (223)

_There was no deferred tax held by the Company in 2016 (2015: £nil).

The valuation and receverability of deferred tax.assets relating to taxable losses and capital allowances in
excess of depreciation is dependent on the availability of future taxable profits within the Company and
Group. Management forecasts currently support the future recoverablhty of the deferred tax asset recognised in

the balance sheet as at 31st December 2016.

The calculation of deferred tax balanees at the year end also takes into account the reduction in the UK main
corporation tax rate to 19%, substantively enacted on 26th October 2015 and effective from 1 April 2017, and a

further reduction to 17%, substantively enacted on 6th September 2016 and effective from 1 April 2020.
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29. Other financial liabilities

2015

2016
. £000 £000
Cash collateral received ' . - 1,550
Subordinated note : 10,243 8,844
: T - . 10,243 10,394

A €12.0m subordmated note is repayable to Merrull Lynch in 2034 “Interest is p'ayable \af the 3 mon‘th euro

deposit rate plus a margin of 3.65%.
There were no other financial liabilities held by the Companyvihv 2016 (2015: £nil).

30. Insurance payables o
2016

2015

- £000 - £000

Due to reinsurers S - o : . 28,314 252,837
-~ Due to policy holders , . S _ - 1,315 3,354
Due to intermediaries. - : ' 27 25
’ ' 256,216

29,656

In the latter part of 2015 the Group entered into a Losé Portfolio Transfer agreement resulting in reinsurance of -
20% of its booked reserves as'at 31 December 2015. This had an impact of £241.7m on the amounts due to

reinsurers which was settled in full in 2016.
" There were no msurance payables due by the Company in 2016 (201 5: £n||)

'31. Trade and other payables

Group © Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
_ £000 £000 £000 £000
Bank overdrafts 13,689 - 9,600 - -
- Amounts owed to group undertakings ‘ . 71,048 47,302 39,453 39,453
Accruals and deferred income = . : ’ 44,439 42,291 - -
Other taxes and social security costs 38,647 32,037 - -
Other payables ' . ‘ ©. 2,324 4,743 - - 3,500
Deferral rental income ~ _ 202 240 - ~ -
' 39,453 42,953

170,349

136,213

"Included within other payables is £nil of $hare capital (2015: £3.5m) (see note 32).
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32. Share capital .
‘ Group _Company

2016 2015 2016 2015

_ - £000 £000 £000 £000
Owned by the LVFS Group ‘
Ordinary shares, allotted and fully paid : .
400,312,253 ordinary shares of £1 each ’ : ‘400,312 400,312 400,312 400,312
Ordinary B shares, allotted and fully paid ' , : o
4,500,000 (2015: 1,000,000) ordinary shares of £1 each 4,500 1,000 4,500 1,000
Owned by Key Management Personnel
Ordinary B shares, allotted and fully paid- : . _
nil (2015: 3,500,000) ordinary shares of £1 each - 3,500 - 3,500

In May 2013 the Company issued ordinary B shares to certain key management personnel (see note 37). Due
to the terms of this share issue these shares were initially reported in trade and other payables (see note 31).
. These shares were purchased by LVFS in 2016: £3.5m and 2015: £1m at WhICh point they were recognised as
share capital in the LVGIG Statement of Financial Position.

All authorised shares have been issued.

33, Preference shares :
’ ' : Group ' Company

2016 2015 2016 2015
£000 £000 £000  £000
- Preference shares » '
170,000,000 preference shares of £1 each - 170,000 170,000 170,000 170,000

The preference shares are rton-cumulative and perpetual £1 preference shares. Dividends are payable at the
rate of Libor+1% subject to a minimum of 4%.

34. Retained earnings

Group . Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
£000 £000 £000 £000
Balance at 1 January 143,487 116,473 68,057 61,119
(Loss)/profit for the year - (21,874) 38,614 3,400 = 18,538
Dividends paid =~ . . (6,800) : (1 1,600). (6,800) (1 1,600)

Balance at 31 December : 114,813 143,487 64,657 68,057
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35. Dividends per ehere

The following dividends weré declared and paid in the year:

- o £nil dividend payment on ordinary shares — nil per share (2015: £30.0m — 7.5p per share)
o £6.8m dividend payment on preference shares - 4p per share (2015: £6.8m - 4p per share).

36. Cash (used in)/generated from operating activities

Group ' Company.

2016 2015 2016 2015
: £000 - £000. £000 £000
(Loss)/profit before tax (29,974) 50,792 . 3,400 18,538
Investment income - (60,585) (74,878) (3,400) (37,980)
Interest income received (30,275) (25,866) - - -
Finance costs 353 319 - -
Losses on financial mstruments recorded in the Statement . .
_of Comprehensive Income ‘ 13,685 - 42947 - -
Exchange losses/(gains) on financial instruments recorded _ : '
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income 1,399 (468) - -
Non-cash items '
Expenses deferred during the year (2,826) (1,413) - - : -
Amortisation of intangible assets 4,513 3,515 - -
Depreciation on property and equipment 1,348 1,869 - -
Loss on disposal of property and equipment Lo 6 - ’ -
Changes in working capital ‘ :
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments (4,094) . 3111 - -
(Increase)/decrease in loans and other receivables " (222,733) 30,631 - . -
Increase in reinsurance assets (90,821) (260,518) - -
Increase in insurance receivables (38,238)  (35,130) - oo . -
Increase in insurance contract liabilities 260,089 98,168 - -
Decrease in provisions ' (190) (2,698) - .
(Decrease)/increase in insurance payables (226,560) 241,138 - -
(Decrease)/increase in collateral received (1,550) 650 - -
Increase in trade and other payables . 33,547 5,383 - 19,453
Cash (used m)lgenerated from operatmg activities (392,912) 77,558 - , M

'The Group classifies the cash flows for the acquisition and disposal of financial assets in its operating cash
flows as the purchases are funded from the cash flows associated with the origination of insurance and
investment contracts, net of the cash flows for payments of insurance benefits and claims and investment- -

. contract benefits.
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37. Related paﬁy transactions

The Group enters into transactions with key management personnel in the normal course of business. All
transactions are carried out on an arm’s length basis. Details of significant transactions carried out during the
year with related parties are as follows

Key management personnel of the Group include all directors, executive and non-executive, and senior
management (the Board and the Executive Committee). The summary of the compensation of key management_
personnel for the year is as follows:

Group . ' Company
2016 2015 - 2016 2015
: ) £000 £000 £000 £000
Short-term employee benefits ‘ ‘ 4,432 7,129 - 4,230 6,769
Post-employment benefits : . 63 .73 58 73
Other long-term benefits - : 1,384 40,921 1,356 35,858
: ’ : Av5,879 48,123 5,644 42,700

In May 2013, certain key management personnel invested £4.5m in the B ordinary share capital of the
Company as part of an arrangement covering the three year period from 1 January 2013 to 31 December 2015.

This arrangement allowed the holders of the B ordinary shares'to benefit from the total éhareholder retufn
(being the equity increase in the market valuation of the Group plus dividends paid) generated over this three:
year period. This arrangement was accounted for as a cash-settled share-based payment transaction under
IFRS2.

The table below shows the final value of the shares included in this share scheme arrangement, settlement for
which was completed in February 2016. :

‘ , £000
Shares subscribed : . _ 4,500
Less leavers shares repurchased in 2015 ‘ ' (1,000)
Fair value of goods and services ‘ : : _ 39,442
Final share.valuation : ' 42,942

‘An estimate of the final fair value of the goods and services to be received by the Group, and LVFS, was
accrued evenly over the three year term of the arrangement, with an adjustment made in 2015 to reflect the
actual outcome. This resulted in a £19.4m charge to staff costs within the 2015 financial statements. The
market valuation of the Group used for the purpose of the final valuation at 31 December 2015 was based on
agreement between the parties, having taken advice from an independent third party expert.

The final liability of £42.9m was settied by LVFS in February 2016. There is an intercompany creditor owed by
LVGIG to LVFS for the fair value of the goods and services included within Trade and other payables as at 31
December 2016.
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37. Related party transactions (continued)

"The follbwing transactions have taken place between the Group and other Group companies:

Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
‘ £000 £000 £000 £000
Dividend received from LVIC ‘ , - - 3,400 37,980
Dividend paid to LV Capital PLC (6,800).  (36,800) (6,800) (36,800)
Management charge : . - +(212,903) (202,749) : - 3 -
: s (219,703) (239,549) (3,400) 1,180
- Balances outstanding between the Group and other Group companies:
Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
: £000 £000 ) £000°  £000
Payable to LVFS . ‘ (71,048)  (47,302) . (39,453) | (39,453)
.Preference shares to LV Capital PLC (170,000) (170,000) (170,000) (170,000)
‘ ' (241,048) (217,302) . (209,453) (209,453)

38. Operating lease commitments

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had future'a'ggregate minimurh lease payments under non-cancellable

" operating leases in respect of buildings of:

2016 2015

£000 £000

Within 1 year 1,144 1,144
In 2to 5 years 1,255 2,399
: 2,399 3,543

The costs in respect of operating leases are charged on a Stralght line basis over the lease term. The value of
any incentive received to take on an operating lease (for example rent free periods) is recognised as deferred

‘income and is released over the life of the lease.
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39. Investments in subsidiary undertakings

All subsidiary undertakmgs have the same year end as LVGIG and all are mcluded in the consolidation. The

Company's mvestments in subsidiaries comprises:

Incorporated-and Percentage of Type of
Name domiciled Principal activity shares held* shares held
Highway Insurance Group : ; General insurance .
Limited England and Wales | 1, 4ing company 100% Ordinary
Highway Insurance : . Ordinary:
Company Limited England and Wales General insurance 100% y
Liverpool Victoria
Insurance Company . Ordinary
Limited England and Wales General insurance 100% .
LV Insurance Management Ordinar
Management Limited England and Wales Services Company 100% y
LV Assistance Servnces Road rescue - pay .
Limited ‘ England and Wales on use 100% Ordinary
LV Repair Services ;
Limited England and Wales | Repair services 100% Ordinary
Ockham Corporate ' _ -
Limited England and Wales ~_| Dormant 100% Ordinary
Elr%n:/c?y Group Services England and Wales Dormant 100% "Ordinary
Highway Corporate :
Capital Limited England and Wales Dormant 100% Ordinary
NLC Name No.1 Limited England and Wales Dormant 100% Ordinary
NLC Name No.2 Limited England and Wales Dormant 100% Ordinary
NLC Name No.3 Limited England and Wales Dormant 100% Ordinary
NLC Name No.4 Limited England and Wales Dormant 100% Ordinary
"NLC Name No:.5 Limited England and Wales Dormant 100% Ordinary
NLC Name No.7 Limited England and Wales Dormant 100% Ordinary

*All holdings are direct holdings apart from Highway Insurance Company Limited, LV Repair Services Limited
and Highway Group Services Limited which are 100% held indirectly and Highway Insurance Group Limited
which is 99.9999% held indirectly and 0.0001% held directly.

The registered address of all the above undertakings is County Gates, Bournemouth, BH1 2NF.

Slgnlflcant Restrlctlons
. There are no significant restrictions in place regarding any of the subsidiaries above
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40. Investments in unconsolidated structured entities |,

The Group has interests in structured entities which are not consolidated as the.definition of control has not
been met based on the proportion of the investment of the structured- entity held by the Group. As at 31
December 2016 the Group’s interest in unconsolidated structured entities was £442.2m (2015: £463.0m) which
- is classified as financial assets held at fair value through income.

Thé Group's exposure to financial loss from the interest in the unéonsolidated structu'red entities is limited to the
investment amount shown below. The Group is not requnred to provide financial support to the entities, nor does
it sponsor the entities.

A . e 2016 2015
Investment , £000 £000
OEICS (Open Ended Investment Company) : : 242,027 215,604
Liquidity Funds , . "~ 200,149 247,404
Total : ‘ ' . 442,176 463,008

41. Post year end events

The change in the Ogden discount rate had a £138.5m. adverse impact on the Group’s pre-tax profit and a
£100m adverse impact on the Group’s Solvency Il capital surplus. To support the capital position of Liverpool
Victoria Insurance Company Limited (‘LVIC’), a regulated subsidiary of the Group, the Company purchased 40
million ordinary shares of £1 each in LVIC at par on 28 February 2017. This capital injection was not recognised
in the 2016 results. In order to fund this capital injection the Company issued 40 million ordlnary shares of £1
each at par to LV Capltal PLC, its parent company, on 28 February 2017

There have been no other events of S|gmfncance affectmg the Group since the Statement of Fmanaal Posmon
date. :

42. Ultimate parent company

The ultimate parent company and ultimate controlling party is Liverpool Victoria Friendly Society Limited, a UK .
incorporated Friendly Society registered under the Friendly Societies Act 1992.

The immediate parent company is LV Capital PLC, a limited liability company, 'incorpqrated in the UK.
Both the ultimate and immediate parent companies are registered at'the below address

The largest and smallest company whose financial statements this company is consolldated into is leerpool
Victoria Friendly Socnety Limited.

The consolidated financial statements of. L|verpool Victoria Frlendly Socuety Limited are available to the pubhc
and may be obtained from: .
The Company Secretary
County Gates.
Bournemouth

~BH1 2NF

?

or at www.lv.com/annualreport



